

Kingfisher Pension Scheme

Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Contents

Trustee and advisers	2
Trustee's report	3
Statement of Trustee's Responsibilities	16
Independent auditor's report	
Fund Account for the year ended 31 March 2024	20
Statement of Net Assets as at 31 March 2024 (available for benefits)	21
Notes to the financial statements	22
Independent auditor's statement about contributions	
Summary of contributions	40
Actuary's calculation of technical provisions	41
Actuary's Certification of the Schedule of Contributions	42
Report on Actuarial Liabilities (forming part of the Trustee's report)	43
Compliance statement	44
Money Purchase Section annual governance statement by the Chair of the Trustee Board	46
Appendix I: Statement of investment principles	58
Appendix II: Tables illustrating the impact of charges and costs	74

Trustee and advisers

TRUSTEE

Kingfisher Pension Trustee Limited

TRUSTEE DIRECTORS

Employer nominated BESTrustees Limited represented by Clive Gilchrist (resigned 30 June 2023) ITS Limited represented by Rachel Croft (appointed 1 July 2023) Gillian Baker Joanna Bevan Dermot Courtier (appointed 1 April 2023) Helen Jones (resigned 9 October 2023) Simon Ogle Paul Shearer

Member nominated

Lee Aspin (resigned 27 September 2023) Tosin Banjo (appointed 13 December 2023) Yolanda Jackson Grant MacGregor Jane Winsbrow (resigned 26 June 2024) Brett Borkowski (appointed 26 June 2024)

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYER

Kingfisher plc

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS

B&Q Limited B&Q (Retail) Guernsey Limited B&Q (Retail) Jersey Limited Kingfisher Information Technology Service (UK) Limited Kingfisher International Products Limited Screwfix Direct Limited

SECRETARY TO THE TRUSTEE James Chemirmir

ACTUARY

Hymans Robertson LLP Lisa Deas FFA (appointed 27 September 2023) Calum Cooper FFA (resigned 26 September 2023)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR Grant Thornton UK LLP

LEGAL ADVISERS Mayer Brown International LLP Eversheds LLP

GROUP LIFE ASSURANCE Canada Life

INVESTMENT MANAGERS

Final Salary section

BlackRock Renewable Power Fund II (C), L.P. BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited Hayfin Direct Lending GP Ltd Insight Investment Management (Global) Ltd Legal & General Investment Management LGT Capital Partners (Ireland) Limited PIMCO Europe Limited

Money Purchase section

Legal and General Assurance Society Limited

ANNUITY PROVIDERS

Legal and General Assurance Society Limited Pension Insurance Corporation Aviva Life & Pensions UK Limited

INVESTMENT ADVISERS

Aon Solutions UK Limited Barnett Waddingham LLP

CUSTODIAN State Street Bank & Trust Company

AVC PROVIDERS

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited Legal and General Assurance (Pensions Management) Limited The Prudential Assurance Company Limited Phoenix Life Assurance Limited

BANKERS Barclays Bank plc

ADMINISTRATORS

Final Salary Section Hymans Robertson LLP

Money Purchase Section Legal and General Assurance Society Limited ('L&G')

NAME AND ADDRESS FOR ENQUIRIES

Scheme Secretary Kingfisher plc 1 Paddington Square London W2 1GG Email: <u>corporatepensions@kingfisher.com</u>

Trustee's report

The Trustee of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme') present their annual report for the year ended 31 March 2024. This report is completed in accordance with all Regulatory requirements applicable for the Scheme year.

Introduction

The Trustee would like to draw attention to the following activities which were undertaken during the Scheme year:

- Consultation on Guaranteed Minimum Pension Equalisation (page 6)
- Completion of the Statement for Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (page 8)

The Trustee Report includes the Implementation Statement (page 8) which provides information regarding investment activity and performance during the Scheme year. The Annual Governance Statement for the Money Purchase Section is included as an Appendix to this report, which provides information regarding:

- Investment strategy and governance
- Processing of core financial transactions
- Disclosure of member-borne costs and charges
- Assessment of value for members
- > How the Trustee has met trustee knowledge and understanding requirements

Constitution of the Scheme

The Scheme provides a Final Salary section ('FS') and a Money Purchase section ('MP') which holds Scheme funds on trust to apply them for the purpose of paying pensions and other benefits. It is governed by a Trust Deed dated 15 December 1986 and subsequent amendments.

The Final Salary section closed to future accrual on 1 July 2012. The Money Purchase section was introduced on 1 April 2004.

The Money Purchase section does not pay pensions as annuities are purchased to fund pension benefits which are bought in the name of the member. Post the April 2015 'Freedom and Choice' legislation changes, members also now have the voluntary option to take cash and / or transfer monies to an income drawdown solution.

Management of the Scheme

The Trustee Directors who served during the year are listed on page 2.

The current professional Trustee (ITS Limited) and previous professional Trustee (BESTrustees Limited) are both trustee companies, who acts (or acted) as a Trustee Director to the trust. These companies have no interest in the assets of the trust; they are not beneficiaries of the trust and are not entitled to share in the assets of the trust. The professional Trustee and six of the Trustee Directors are appointed by the Company.

The member nominated Trustee Directors serve for a period of four years unless their Trusteeship is terminated, they resign or leave active membership before the end of their term. These Trustee Directors are also able to stand for re-election for a further one term of four years, making a total of eight years' maximum service.

The number of the Trustee Directors shall never be more than 14 or (except on account of casual vacancies or where the Trustees are or include a company) fewer than three. Within these limits, the Company will have power by deed to remove Trustees from office or to appoint new or additional Trustees. A Trustee will be discharged if they are removed or replaced by the Company (provided that there is at least one Trustee remaining) or if they resign by written notice both to the Company and to the other Trustees (provided that the Trustees continuing in office are at least three in number or include a company). A company which is not the sole Trustee will cease to be a Trustee upon going into liquidation.

Committees

The Trustee has established the following sub committees to facilitate additional targeted and technical matters:

- Defined Benefit Investment Committee
- Defined Contribution Investment and Retirement Committee
- Audit, Accounts and Governance Committee
- Benefits Committee

Financial development of the Scheme

The Financial Statements of the Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2024, as set out on pages 20 to 38 have been prepared and audited in accordance with regulations made under Section 41(1) and (6) of the Pensions Act 1995. A summary is shown below:

£m	31 March 2024		31 Marc	ch 2023
	FS Section	MP Section	FS Section	MP Section
Net (withdrawals)/additions from dealing with members	(101.4)	47.0	(112.2)	54.8
Net (losses) / returns on investments	(73.0)	98.7	(1,020.6)	(26.8)
Net (decrease) / increase in fund	(174.4)	145.7	(1,132.8)	28.0
Transfers between sections	(9.4)	9.4	(5.3)	5.3
Net assets at the end of the year	2,284.9	807.6	2,468.7	652.5

Information regarding the investment activity and performance of the Scheme can be found within the Implementation Statement which begins on page 8.

Actuarial review (Final Salary section)

The latest triennial actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2022. The results of this actuarial review are shown below:

£m	31 March 2022 31		31 March 2019	
	ТР	2FO*	ТР	2FO*
Assets	3,506	3,587	3,573	3,573
Liabilities	3,323	3,564	3,416	3,812
Surplus / (Deficit)	183	23	157	(239)
Funding level	106%	101%	105%	94%

*Further explanation of 2FO is provided in the Investment Report on page 7.

As a result of the latest triennial actuarial review, a Schedule of Contributions ('SOC') was signed on 27 September 2022 which allowed the income received from the Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPVI') to be transferred from the FS Section to the MP Section, to assist in funding Employer MP Section contributions. The Memorandum of Agreement ('MOA') between the Company and the Trustee, which covers the period September 2022 to June 2025 (payable in July 2025) remained in place for the current Scheme year. The final SPVI transfer from the FS to MP section will take place in July 2025 under the existing MOA.

Further information on the SPV is provided in note 14 on page 29. Information on contributions received in the year and the corresponding SPVI transfer between sections is shown in note 2 on page 24.

The results of the latest funding position estimated as at 31 March 2024 are shown below:

£m	31 March 2024		31 Marc	h 2023
	ТР	2FO	ТР	2FO
Assets	2,233	2,276	2,404	2,456
Liabilities	2,110	2,222	2,267	2,407
Surplus / (Deficit)	123	54	137	49
Funding level	106%	102%	106%	102%

Note: full value of SPV is included in the 31 March 2024 position and future SPVI transfers expected under the MOA have not been deducted from the assets

The Report on Actuarial Liabilities forms part of the Trustee's Report and is shown after Actuary's Certification of the Schedule of Contributions on page 43.

Next actuarial valuation

The next actuarial valuation of the Scheme is due as at 31 March 2025.

Scheme actuary

Calum Cooper resigned on 26 September 2023. There are no circumstances connected with his resignation which, in his opinion, significantly affected the interests of the members or the prospective members of, or beneficiaries under, the Scheme. Lisa Deas was appointed as Scheme Actuary in his place.

Membership	Final Salary Section			Mone	ey Purchase S	ection	
	Deferred	Pensioners*	Dependants	Total	Active	Deferred	Total
1 April 2023	13,268	13,377	1,279	27,924	25,686	43,650	69,336
Opening balance adjustment**	-	-	-	-	118	355	473
New	-	564	147	711	4,099	4,263	8,362
Deaths	(33)	(428)	(69)	(530)	(3)	(39)	(42)
Retirements	(564)	-	-	(564)	(359)	(505)	(864)
Commutations full / trivial	(45)	(10)	(105)	(160)	-	-	-
Leavers with retained benefits	-	-	-	-	(4,263)	-	(4,263)
Cessations/surrenders	(1)	-	(7)	(8)	(98)	(110)	(208)
Transfers out	(26)	-	-	(26)	(164)	(1,076)	(1,240)
Reinstatements	-	1	-	1	-	-	-
31 March 2024	12,599	13,504	1,245	27,348	25,016	46,538	71,554

Membership

*Included in the pensioner numbers are 8,217 (2023:8,400) which are secured by annuity contracts. Further information on annuity contracts is provided in note 15.

The number of life insurance only members at the year-end is 10,058 (2023: 11,379)

** relates to late notifications of members

Employees who opt out of the Scheme before contributions are remitted are not included in these statistics.

Pension increases (Final Salary section)

Pensions in payment receive guaranteed annual increases matching the rise in the Retail Prices Index ('RPI') (during a calendar year) up to a maximum of 5%. Where inflation exceeds 5%, the Trustee may consider the payment of additional discretionary increases at the request of the Employer.

Increases from the Scheme do not apply to that element of the pension in payment representing any Guaranteed Minimum Pension ('GMP') earned before 6 April 1988 after age 60 for females, or 65 for males, as these increases are provided with the State pension. The Scheme is required to provide GMP as a consequence of contracting-out of the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (SERPS). The GMP element earned after April 1988 will be increased by the Scheme in line with inflation, as required by legislation, up to a limit of 3% per annum. Pension increases over the last three years are shown in the table below:

Year	Pension Increase	RPI
2024	5% (capped)	5.2%
2023	5% (capped)	13.4%
2022	5% (capped)	7.5%
2021	1.2 %	1.2 %

Increases for pensioners in the Channel Islands are calculated in accordance with their own RPI. The RPI for Jersey and Guernsey was 7.5% and 6.3% respectively at December 2023.

Each year, the Scheme increases deferred pensions in line with inflation, up to 5% per annum between the date of leaving and the date of retirement. These increases are non-discretionary.

GMP Equalisation

On 26 October 2018, the High Court handed down a judgment involving the Lloyds Banking Group's defined benefit pension schemes. The judgment concluded that schemes should be amended to equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum pension benefits. The issue determined by the judgment arises in relation to many other defined benefit pension schemes. Under the ruling schemes are required to backdate benefit adjustments in relation to GMP equalisation and provide interest on the backdated amounts.

On 20 November 2020 the High Court issued a follow-on judgment, which suggested that transfer payments made since May 1990 will need to be topped up to allow for GMP equalisation.

Based on the assessment of the backdated amounts and related interest due, the Scheme Actuary has estimated the effect to be an increase in 0.2% of the Scheme's liabilities. An allowance for this is made in the liabilities to reflect the estimated impact. No provision has been made for this in the financial statements at this time.

In March 2024 the Trustee completed the implementation of GMP equalisation for the first phase of membership (pensioners aged 80 or over). In May 2024 the Trustee launched consultations for the next two phases (deferred members and the remaining pensioners) with agreed conversion dates of 30 June 2024 and 15 July 2024 respectively. These two phases of the project are expected to complete by the end of 2024. The results of this project and activity regarding further phases of GMP equalisation will be provided in the Trustee Report in the next Scheme year.

Changes to rules

Deeds of variation were signed on 24 April 2023 and 28 June 2024 which applied various amendments regarding GMP conversion.

Investment Report

Custody

Custodian services are provided by State Street Bank and Trust Company Limited. Although the Trustee has delegated day to day management of the Scheme's investments to external managers, the custody (safekeeping) of the segregated assets is carried out independently of the managers by State Street Bank and Trust Company Limited. The underlying assets of pooled investment vehicles are held under the custody of separate custodians appointed by the manager of the respective pooled fund. The Scheme's investment in the Special Purpose Vehicle and the annuity contracts are held directly by the Trustee.

Investment management

The Trustee delegates the day to day management to professional external investment managers. The Trustee sets the investment strategy for the Scheme after taking advice from the Scheme's investment advisers. The Trustee has put in place investment mandates with their investment managers which implement this strategy.

In accordance with s35 of the Pensions Act 1995, a Statement of Investment Principles has been prepared by the Trustee which incorporates the investment strategy. A copy of the Statement is available to members upon request and is included as appendix I to these financial statements.

Investment managers are remunerated by fees based on a percentage of funds under management and in some instances a percentage of performance above benchmark.

Investment managers have been asked to exercise voting rights where relevant, referring back to the Group Pensions Department only those issues which they feel are contentious and warrant further discussion before taking action.

The Trustee has delegated day to day investment decisions to its appointed investment managers (within certain guidelines and restrictions).

The Trustee believes that all companies should be run in a socially responsible way as in the long run this should contribute to the success of those companies, but equally recognises its fiduciary responsibility to act in the best financial interests of the Scheme's members. Therefore, the Trustee's policy is that the investment managers should take account of social, environmental and governance (ESG) considerations to the extent that they may have a financial impact on investment performance. With this in mind the Trustee Board also encourages managers to pursue policies of engagement with their investee companies.

Objectives and Performance (Final Salary Section)

Kingfisher plc (the Company) and Kingfisher Pension Trustee Limited (the Trustee) have an agreed funding and investment plan for the Scheme, the Secondary Funding Objective (2FO), which targets a strong funding level and relatively low investment risk, and which is in excess of the minimum Statutory Funding requirements. The Secondary Funding Objective target is for the Scheme to be 100% funded on a gilts-flat basis by 2030, this is anticipated to approximate the cost of securing benefits through annuities at that time.

Matching assets constituted 88% of Scheme assets at March 2024 and is expected to constitute 100% of Scheme Assets by March 2030. The Scheme is targeting hedging of the interest rate (96%) and inflation (96%) risks through its liability hedging portfolio. The Company and the Trustee will agree circumstances under which this de-risking plan could be accelerated.

Other details relating to the 2FO and the Statutory Funding Objective are set out in the Statement of Funding Principles which is available to members upon request.

The performance of the Scheme's investments is measured against the Scheme specific benchmark. Taking all portfolios together, the return achieved by the Scheme during the year to 31 March 2024 is shown in the following table:

Annualised return over	1 year	3 years	5 years
Actual	-4.8%	-14.5%	-7.1%
Benchmark	-5.3%	-14.7%	-7.5%

Reviewing performance over the longer periods is more relevant to the Scheme's long-term objectives.

Information regarding the investment activity and performance of the Scheme can be found within the Implementation Statement which begins on page 8.

Objectives and performance (Money Purchase Section)

A default strategy is provided which the Trustee believes is suitable for the needs of the membership. The Trustee reviews the investment default on a regular basis. The default option for the Money Purchase Section is currently the cash target lifestyle option.

Over the year to 31 March 2024 the return of the default strategy is shown in the following table:

Annualised return over	1 year	3 years	5 years
Actual	15.3%	5.9%	7.6%
Benchmark	15.9%	6.6%	8.1%

The Trustee makes available to members of the Money Purchase Section an appropriate range of investment options to which members and the Employer will contribute in order to provide each member with a fund which will be used to secure their benefit at retirement. The Money Purchase Section offers a facility for members to contribute more on a voluntary basis.

Statement for Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD")

In October 2022 UK disclosures per the TCFD framework became mandatory for schemes with assets more than £1 billion. The Trustee is pleased to present their second TCFD Statement which can be found by accessing this link:

https://www.kingfisherpensions.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Kingfisher-2024-TCFD-report-for-yearending-31-March-2024-Type-signed-1.pdf

Implementation Statement

Background

The Trustee maintains a Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) for the two sections of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme - the Final Salary Section and the Money Purchase Section. The SIP is available on the Scheme's website:

https://www.kingfisherpensions.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/KPS-SIP-2022.pdf

This statement, which is required by legislation, explains how the Trustee has implemented the SIP during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Changes to the SIP

The Trustee reviews the SIP at least once every three years and following any significant change in investment policy.

The latest review for these purposes was carried out in December 2022, when the SIP was updated following the completion of the 2022 actuarial valuation and a review of the default strategy under the Money Purchase Section. Minor changes were made to the SIP to reflect the outcome of the valuation and the review and as otherwise as a matter of good practice. In particular information was added about:

- The changes to the default strategy described below
- The Trustee's beliefs and policies as regards climate change and the liquidity and realisation of investments
- The Trustee's risks were updated to include collateral adequacy risk

There were no changes to the SIP during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Giving effect to the SIP

The Trustee is satisfied that it has followed the SIP throughout the year for both the Final Salary and Money Purchase Sections. The following paragraphs provide information about how the SIP has been followed.

Governance

In accordance with the SIP, certain investment functions have been delegated to the DB Investment Committee and the DC Investment and Retirement Committee (the Investment Committees). There was no change to the role or responsibilities of the Investment Committees during the year.

The Investment Committees met quarterly during the year to consider investment matters, supported by the Trustee's investment advisers where appropriate as provided for in the SIP.

In December 2023 the Trustee reviewed the written objectives for its investment advisers, so as to meet the requirements of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Governance and Registration) (Amendment) Regulations 2022.

During the year, the Trustee Board received training in the following areas;

Date	Review of
17.1.2024	Cyber Security - Paul McGlone and Harija Sheikh, Aon
17.1.2024	The Mansion House Reforms – Defined Benefit (DB), Defined Contribution (DC), Collective Defined Contribution (CDC) - Lisa Deas and Ross McNeill Hymans Robertson
17.1.2024	Illiquid Assets - Long Term Assets Fund ("LTAF") and how they can be used in Defined Contribution – Sam Cobley, LCP
12.10.2023	Longevity – Mark Sharkey, Hymans Robertson
12.10.2023	An interactive introduction to behavioural risks and groupthink – Zoë Burdo, LCP
6.07.2023	Macroeconomic update – Steven Bell, Columbia Threadneedle
6.07.2023	Legal & General – Stewardship and Environmental Social Governance (ESG) – Maria Ortino, LGIM
6.07.2023	Legal training focussing on death and incapacity benefits – Richard Evans, Mayer Brown International

Additionally, Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) training was conducted at the Trustee Board meetings throughout the year. The Trustees completed and published their first TCFD report in 2023, their second TCFD report is now published.

Investment strategy – Final Salary Section

For the Final Salary Section, the SIP provides that the Trustee will invest with the aim of achieving the Scheme's secondary funding objective, i.e. to be fully funded on a "gilts flat" basis by 2030. The bulk of the portfolio is to be invested in assets which broadly match the Scheme's liabilities (gilts, corporate bonds, swaps and buy-in policies). In addition, a substantial part of the interest rate and inflation risk to be hedged using suitable assets. A small proportion of the portfolio is to be invested in return-seeking assets (equities and alternative assets such as private equity, property and commodities). The portfolio is to be gradually de-risked so that by 2030 it consists entirely of matching assets, such as bonds. The timing of de-risking is determined by the Trustee in consultation with the Company. No change was made to this long-term strategy during the year.

During the year, the Trustee implemented the long-term strategy by continuing to invest predominantly in matching assets. The DB Investment Committee monitored the asset allocation on a quarterly basis and is satisfied that the allocation remained in accordance with the SIP. As at 31 March 2024, the proportions of matching and return seeking assets were approximately 92% and 8% respectively.

The Trustee further derisked the return seeking assets of the Scheme by disinvesting £100m from the LGT Capital Partners alternative asset portfolio and further reducing the size of the global equity portfolio.

On the matching asset side of the Scheme the Kingfisher Pension Scheme employs a Liability Driven Investment (LDI) strategy to hedge the majority of the Scheme's interest rate and inflation exposure. During the year ended 31 March 2024 the Trustee continued to monitor and review the hedging programme against the latest Pensions Regulator, and other regulatory, guidance. The Trustee believes the hedging programme to be in a robust and resilient position.

The target level of hedging remains at 96% of the Scheme's interest and inflation exposure. The Trustee monitors the level of collateral and leverage within the LDI programme on an ongoing basis.

The Trustee believes the current investment strategy is supportive of the 2030 secondary funding objective.

Investment strategy – Money Purchase Section

For the Money Purchase Section, the SIP provides that the Trustee will make available a Default Arrangement (for members who do not make their own investment choices) and Self-Select Options (for members who wish to choose). The aim as regards the Default Arrangement is to invest in growth assets for younger members but with de-risking into cash (or similar) over the ten years to selected retirement age; to achieve long-term returns, after charges, of CPI + 3%; and for charges to be well below 0.75% p.a. The aim as regards the Self-Select Options is to offer a simple range of white-labelled funds covering the major asset classes, with suitable diversification within each fund.

During the year, the Trustee gave effect to its strategy by continuing to make available L&G funds which (in the Trustee's view) meet the aims described above.

There were no changes to the Default Arrangement or Self-Select Funds made during the year.

Fund managers and performance

All day-to-day investment decisions throughout the year were delegated to authorised fund managers, in accordance with the SIP. Accordingly, decisions as to the sale and purchase of assets underlying the Trustee's chosen funds were made by the fund managers, subject to the applicable mandates.

During the year, no fund managers were appointed or removed. There were no material changes to the arrangements with the existing fund managers, other than the reduction to the LGT alternative asset portfolio, outlined earlier in this statement.

The Investment Committees monitored the fund managers' performance against the applicable benchmarks on a quarterly basis, using the services of an independent performance measurer, in accordance with the SIP. Turnover costs (where available) were also monitored, along with ESG issues and voting behaviour as described below. In all cases the Committees were satisfied that the Trustee's objectives (taken together) were met.

In accordance with the SIP, the Investment Committees liaised with fund managers on a regular basis throughout the year.

The Investment Committees invite the investment managers to provide updates at their meetings. During the year the Committees held discussions and received updates from BlackRock, HayFin Capital Management, Insight Investment Management, LGT Capital Partners, Columbia Threadneedle and LGIM.

Financial matters including ESG

The Trustee believes that environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues may have a material impact on the long-term performance of investments. The SIP provides that the Trustee will have regard to ESG issues when investing, so far as consistent with the Trustee's duties as regards seeking returns and mitigating risk. Fund managers' approaches to ESG will be considered when making appointments. Thereafter, the Trustee will monitor and engage with fund managers as regards ESG issues as appropriate, and will take account of such issues when reviewing managers' performance. Subject to that it is left to managers to determine the extent to which ESG issues are taken into account when making underlying investments.

Further to the policy set out in the SIP, the Trustee has continued to apply a "climate" tilt to the core equity investments under both the Final Salary and Money Purchase Sections, managed by Legal & General Investment Management (LGIM). The approach gives a greater weighting to companies which are less carbon-intensive, relative to their sector, or which have greater engagement in the transition to a green economy. As part of Final Salary Section investments, the Trustee also invests in a global renewable energy fund. As part of the Money Purchase Section investments, the Trustee invests in a number of L&G 'Future World' funds, including the L&G Future World Equity Fund, the L&G Future World Multi Asset Fund, the L&G Future World Annuity Aware Fund and the L&G Future World Inflation Linked Annuity Aware Fund.

LGIM are part of the Net Zero Asset Managers initiative which is an international group of asset managers committed to supporting the goal of net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050 or sooner, in line with global efforts to limit warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius; and to supporting investing aligned with net zero emissions by 2050 or sooner across all assets under management. In line with this commitment, LGIM have a target for 70% of eligible assets under management to be managed in line with this net-zero ambition by 2030. In addition, drawing on industry best practice, they have set out their key requirements for any investment portfolio to be considered net-zero aligned. This includes setting targets, adopting a decarbonisation pathway, engaging for change, excluding misaligned companies, and growing 'green' opportunities.

LGIM also applies a "Climate Impact Pledge"– each year LGIM engages with the largest companies across the world identified as key to meeting global climate change goals and commits to disinvesting from companies that fail to demonstrate sufficient action.

During 2023, LGIM continued their deforestation engagement campaign. Having communicated initially with around 300 companies in deforestation-critical sectors, they then followed up with direct engagements to discuss their deforestation policies and approaches. As part of their deforestation policy they will sanction companies (normally a vote against the Chair) for not meeting their minimum expectations of having a deforestation policy or programme.

LGIM is part of the steering committee of the global Finance Sector Deforestation Action (FSDA) initiative to commit to use best efforts to eliminate agricultural commodity-driven deforestation from their investment portfolios. The initiative has set out investor expectations for companies around commitments, disclosure and actions related to deforestation. LGIM are also active members of the Investors Policy Dialogue on Deforestation (IPDD). This collaboration was established in 2020 and is an investor-led engagement initiative that aims to halt deforestation.

In accordance with the SIP, the Trustee has encouraged fund managers to vote and exercise other investor rights, and to engage with investee companies and other relevant persons on ESG issues.

The quarterly investment reports which the Investment Committees received from the Trustee's investment advisers included assessments as to the fund managers' integration of ESG considerations into their investment processes, and their stewardship practices. In addition, fund managers supplied information as to their own stewardship activities. The Committees were satisfied that the information received did not give rise to concerns which, in accordance with the SIP, should be raised with the fund managers.

Non-financial matters

The Trustee has regard to ESG issues when investing as described above. The Trustee recognises that members may have their own strong views on ethical, social and environmental issues (non-financial matters), but does not believe that there is any clear consensus as to non-financial matters across the membership. Against that background, in accordance with the SIP, the Trustee has continued to offer the Ethical Fund and the Shariah Fund as Self-Select Options under the Money Purchase Section.

The Trustee, working with L&G and Tumelo provide a member engagement tool that gives members greater transparency of the companies they have their pension invested in. The tool also provides the members with the opportunity to share their views on how certain shareholder votes should be cast in relation to these companies, on issues including ESG: climate change, gender equality, diversity and human rights. These member views are shared with the investment managers who are then able to take them into consideration when voting. The vote the investment manager casts is in turn shared with the members, along with rationale as to why the investment manager voted the way they decided.

The Scheme provides members with access to webinars provided by L&G covering a broad range of topics including workplace pensions, the pension gender gap, investing and ESG.

Voting

Voting arrangements

The core equity manager for both the Final Salary and Money Purchase Section is LGIM. The Trustee does not exercise voting rights, as its investments are through pooled funds with many other participating investors. Instead voting rights are exercised by LGIM as described below.

LGIM's voting and engagement activities are driven by its Investment Stewardship team, made up of ESG professionals. The team determines how to vote and engage with investee companies in order to achieve the best outcome for LGIM's clients as a whole. For this purpose, the team has adopted formal policies (reviewed each year) on corporate governance, responsible investment and conflicts of interest. The team draws on its own research and ESG assessment tools, and on ISS recommendations and reports of the Institutional Voting Information Services.

LGIM disclose their voting records on their website at the end of each month, including summaries of their positions for significant shareholder votes. LGIM's voting policies are reviewed annually and take into account feedback from its clients. Every year, LGIM holds a stakeholder roundtable event where investors are invited to express their views to the Investment Stewardship team.

LGIM uses ISS's "ProxyExchange" electronic voting platform in order to vote. However, strategic decisions as to voting are made by LGIM as described above. To ensure that ISS votes in accordance with those strategic decisions, LGIM has put in place a custom voting policy with specific voting instructions. These instructions apply to all markets globally and seek to uphold what LGIM consider to be minimum best practice standards which all companies should observe. LGIM retains power to override any proposed voting decisions of ISS.

Voting behaviour

The LGIM Investment Stewardship team comprises 26 professionals with an average of 12.5 years' experience in areas including responsible investment, investment stewardship, accounting and audit, impact investment, and public policy. The Head of Investment Stewardship and Responsible Investment Integration, Michael Marks, reports directly to LGIM's CEO, Michelle Scrimgeour, and is a member of LGIM's Executive Committee.

As part of the Trustee's training programme during 2023, the Trustee held a session with LGIM's Stewardship Team in order to discuss, and scrutinise, their latest stewardship activities and approach.

During 2023 LGIM cast 148,794 votes across all their assets under management and their investment stewardship team engaged with 2,050 companies.

LGIM report on their compliance with their engagement policies annually, via their Active Ownership Report.

The funds that have an exposure to equities within the default arrangement are as follows:

- · L&G Future World Multi-Asset Fund
- · L&G Future World Fund

The table below, sets out the further details relating to LGIM's voting record for stocks held within each fund for the year to 31 March 2024.

	Future World Fund	Future World Multi-Asset Fund
How many meetings were you eligible to vote at over the year to 31/03/2024?	1,707	8,965
How many resolutions were you eligible to vote on over the year to 31/03/2024?	21,925	91,840
What % of resolutions did you vote on for which you were eligible?	99.82%	99.81%
Of the resolutions on which you voted, what % did you vote with management?	79.72%	76.66%
Of the resolutions on which you voted, what % did you vote against management?	20.11%	23.13%
Of the resolutions on which you voted, what % did you abstain from?	0.16%	0.22%
In what % of meetings, for which you did vote, did you vote at least once against management?	70.81%	73.57%
What % of resolutions, on which you did vote, did you vote contrary to the recommendation of your proxy adviser? (if applicable)	15.39%	14.38%

For further information about how the Trustee engaged with fund managers as to voting and stewardship, see the "Financial matters" section.

Key votes

In the Trustee's view, the most significant votes are those as to ESG issues which are likely to affect long-term investment performance. Significant votes by LGIM over the year included the following:

Company name: Fedex Co	rporation	
Sector: Industrial	: transportation	
Issue identified:	Paid sick leave. LGIM believe human capital issues represent risk to a company's operations,	
	whether through heightened attrition or decreased productivity.	
Position size at date of vote	<u>0.06%</u>	
(as a percentage of		
portfolio):		
Summary of the resolution:	Resolution 7: Adopt a paid sick leave policy AGM date: 21 September 2023	
How LGIM voted:	FOR Resolution 7 (i.e. against management recommendation)	
If the vote was against	LGIM publicly communicates its vote instructions on its website with the rationale for all votes	
management, was the	against management. It is their policy not to engage with their investee companies in the three	
intention to vote conveyed	veyed weeks prior to an AGM as their engagement is not limited to shareholder meeting topics.	
to the Company prior to		
the vote taking place?		
Rationale for the vote	A vote in favour was applied as LGIM supports the adoption of a paid sick leave policy	
decision:	for all employees as it is set to improve employee wellbeing which is critical to human	
	capital management and gender equality.	
Outros		
Outcome:	34.6% shareholders voted in favour of the proposal	
Why is this vote	This vote is significant because it relates to human capital management issues, which have	
significant?	been a focus of engagement for LGIM, and reflects their broader campaign in 2022 on paid sick	
	leave at US railway companies.	

Company name : DR Horton	Inc
Sector : Consumer,	cyclical: Home builders
lssue lentified:	A lack of gender diversity on the executive committee. LGIM's diversity policy for UK FTSE100
lentified:	companies and US S&P500 companies includes gender diversity expectations for the executive
	committee, as well as the company board: LGIM's diversity approach and expectations - policy document – categorisation.
Position size at date of vote	0.01%
(as a percentage of	0.01/0
portfolio):	
Summary of the resolution:	Resolution 1f: Elect Director Benjamin S. Carson, Sr.
	AGM date: 17 January 2024
How LGIM voted:	LGIM voted AGAINST resolution 1f (i.e. against management recommendation).
If the vote was against	LGIM publicly communicates its vote instructions on its website with the rationale for all votes
management, was the	against management. It is their policy not to engage with their investee companies in the three
intention to vote conveyed	weeks prior to an AGM as their engagement is not limited to shareholder meeting topics.
to the Company prior to	
the vote taking place?	
Rationale for the vote	As part of LGIM's campaign on gender diversity at executive leadership team level, they had
decision:	written to DR Horton in 2023, setting out their expectations and the vote escalation they would
	apply against the chair of the board, should their expectations not be met. Since 2022, our policy has stated that they will vote against FTSE 100 and S&P 500 companies that have all-
	male executive leadership teams. Therefore, a vote against was applied due to the lack of
	gender diversity on the company's executive leadership team, which LGIM expects to include at
	least one woman.
Outcome:	86% of shareholders voted for the resolution. LGIM will continue to engage with companies on
	gender diversity, and to implement our global and regional voting policies on this issue.
Why is this vote	This vote is significant as it relates to the escalation of LGIM's activities on one of their core
significant?	stewardship themes, gender diversity.

Company name : Apple Inc	
Sector : Technolog	у
Issue identified:	In line with their published expectations, LGIM believe companies like Apple should be
	transparent in their uses of AI and their risk management processes.
Position size at date of vote	2.93%
(as a percentage of	
portfolio):	
Summary of the resolution:	Resolution 7 – Report on Use of Al
	AGM date: 28 February 2024
How LGIM voted:	For resolution 7 (against management recommendation)
If the vote was against	LGIM publicly communicates its vote instructions on its website with the rationale for all votes
management, was the	against management. It is their policy not to engage with their investee companies in the three
intention to vote conveyed	weeks prior to an AGM as their engagement is not limited to shareholder meeting topics.
to the Company prior to	
the vote taking place?	
Rationale for the vote	LGIM met with the company to discuss AI, and it did not commit to increasing transparency and
decision:	disclosures at this time. LGIM believe Apple is among several companies that have outsized
	influence on the integration of AI into our economy.
	LGIM pre-declared their vote intention in their 2024 pre-declaration blog.
	Their rationale for the vote decision was that a vote in favour of the proposal was warranted,
	as they believe investors would benefit from further disclosure and
	transparency on the company's use of and internal governance over artificial intelligence.
Outcome:	37.5% shareholders voted in favour of this proposal.
Why is this vote	This vote is significant as it relates directly to one of LGIM's six global stewardship themes:
significant?	Digitisation. LGIM published their expectations of companies regarding governance of AI last year.

The Trustee's Annual Report, which includes the Statement of Trustee's Responsibility on page 16 and the Compliance Statement on pages 44 to 45, were approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

Rachel Croft

ITS Limited Represented by Rachel Croft, Chairperson

14 October 2024

Statement of Trustee's Responsibilities

The financial statements, which are prepared in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), are the responsibility of the Trustee. Pension scheme regulations require, and the Trustee is responsible for ensuring, that those financial statements:

- show a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Scheme during the Scheme year and of the
 amount and disposition at the end of the Scheme year of its assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to
 pay pensions and benefits after the end of the scheme year; and
- contain the information specified in Regulation 3A of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Requirement to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement from the Auditor) Regulations 1996, including making a statement whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework applicable to occupational pension schemes.

In discharging the above responsibilities, the Trustee is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies, to be applied consistently, making any estimates and judgements on a prudent and reasonable basis, and for the preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Scheme will not be wound up.

The Trustee is also responsible for making available certain other information about the scheme in the form of an annual report. The Trustee also has a general responsibility for ensuring that adequate accounting records are kept and for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the Scheme and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities, including the maintenance of an appropriate system of internal control.

The Trustee is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial information of the Scheme included on the Scheme's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Independent auditor's report

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme') for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the fund account, the statement of net assets (available for benefits) and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- show a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2024, and of the amount and disposition at that date of its assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the end of the year;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- contain the information specified in Regulation 3A of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Requirement to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement from the Auditor) Regulations 1996, made under the Pensions Act 1995.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Scheme in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Scheme's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Scheme to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Trustee's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks associated with the Scheme including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as interest and inflation rates and the costof-living crisis, we assessed and challenged the reasonableness of estimates made by the Trustee and the related disclosures and analysed how those risks might affect the Scheme's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Scheme's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are approved by the Trustee.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Independent auditor's report (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustee is responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Trustee

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustee's Responsibilities set out on page 16, the Trustee is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee is responsible for assessing the Scheme's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustee either intends to wind up the Scheme, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

- We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Scheme and determined that the most significant are the Pensions Acts 1995 and 2004 and those that relate to the reporting frameworks (Occupational Pension Schemes (Requirement to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement from the Auditor) Regulations 1996, Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and the Statement of Recommended Practice "Financial Reports of Pension Schemes" 2018 ("the SORP")).
- In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and regulations that may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and those laws and regulations such as, the Pensions Regulator's Codes of Practice and relevant compliance regulations (including the Annual Pensions Bill and tax legislation) under which the Scheme operates.
- We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with management, the Trustee, and from inspection of Trustee board minutes and legal and regulatory correspondence. We discussed the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations with the Trustee.

Independent auditor's report (continued)

- We assessed the susceptibility of the Scheme's financial statements to material misstatement due to
 irregularities including how fraud might occur. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities
 for manipulation of the financial statements and determined that the principal risks were in relation to the
 risk of management override of controls through posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate
 results for the year and inappropriate valuation of investment assets.
- Our audit procedures involved:
 - Journal entry testing, with a focus on large journals, manual journals, those journals with unusual account combinations or entries posted to suspense accounts;
 - Use of our internal experts to challenge the reasonableness of the bulk annuity insurance policy asset, Special Purpose Vehicle and Derivative contracts valuation at the year-end produced by the Trustee's valuation experts and
 - Obtaining independent confirmations of material investment valuations and cash balances at the year end.
- In addition, we completed audit procedures to conclude on the compliance of disclosures in the financial statements with applicable financial reporting requirements.
- These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it;
- The engagement leader's assessment is that all team members are qualified accountants or working towards that qualification and are considered to have sufficient knowledge and experience of schemes of a similar size and complexity, appropriate to their role within the team. The engagement team are required to complete mandatory pensions sector training on an annual basis, thus ensuring they have sufficient knowledge and understanding of the sector, the underlying applicable legislation and related guidance.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Scheme's Trustee, as a body, in accordance with the Pensions Act 1995 and Regulations made thereunder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Scheme's Trustee those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Scheme's Trustee as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants Cardiff Date: 14 October 2024

Fund Account for the year ended 31 March 2024

£m	Notes	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
				2024			2023
Contributions and benefits							
Employer contributions		-	62.2	62.2	3.6	64.3	67.9
Employee contributions		-	10.0	10.0	-	8.9	8.9
Total contributions	2	-	72.2	72.2	3.6	73.2	76.8
Individual transfers in		-	3.4	3.4	-	1.6	1.6
Other income	3	2.7	-	2.7	3.4	-	3.4
		2.7	75.6	78.3	7.0	74.8	81.8
Benefits payable	4	(92.2)	(6.6)	(98.8)	(84.4)	(4.5)	(88.9)
Payments to and on account of leavers	5	(5.0)	(20.7)	(25.7)	(28.4)	(14.3)	(42.7)
Other payments	6	(2.7)	-	(2.7)	(2.4)	-	(2.4)
Administrative expenses	7	(4.2)	(1.3)	(5.5)	(4.0)	(1.2)	(5.2)
		(104.1)	(28.6)	(132.7)	(119.2)	(20.0)	(139.2)
Net (withdrawals)/additions from dea with members	alings	(101.4)	47.0	(54.4)	(112.2)	54.8	(57.4)
Returns on investments							
Investment income	8	74.6	-	74.6	75.9	-	75.9
Change in market value of investments	17	(144.6)	98.7	(45.9)	(1,093.8)	(26.8)	(1,120.6)
Investment management expenses	9	(3.0)	-	(3.0)	(2.7)	-	(2.7)
Net returns on investments		(73.0)	98.7	25.7	(1,020.6)	(26.8)	(1,047.4)
Net (decrease)/increase in the fund de the year	uring	(174.4)	145.7	(28.7)	(1,132.8)	28.0	(1,104.8)
Transfer between sections	10	(9.4)	9.4	-	(5.3)	5.3	-
Net assets of the Scheme at 1 April		2,468.7	652.5	3,121.2	3,606.8	619.2	4,226.0
Net assets of the Scheme at 31 March	1	2,284.9	807.6	3,092.5	2,468.7	652.5	3,121.2

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Net Assets as at 31 March 2024 (available for benefits)

£m	Notes	2024	2023
Final Salary Section			
Investment assets:	17		
Bonds		1,194.1	1,265.2
Pooled investment vehicles	12	499.6	582.7
Derivatives	13	353.7	383.3
Special purpose vehicle	14	108.2	121.4
Insurance policies	15	883.5	948.1
AVC investments	16	15.8	16.6
Cash & cash equivalents		64.2	56.8
Other investment balances	19	41.0	78.7
		3,160.1	3,452.8
Investment liabilities:	17		
Bonds		-	(30.3)
Derivatives	13	(395.1)	(402.8)
Other investment balances	19	(496.5)	(582.3)
Total net investments		2,268.5	2,437.4
Current assets	22	25.0	37.9
Current liabilities	23	(8.6)	(6.6)
Total net assets of FS		2,284.9	2,468.7
Money Purchase Section			
Investment assets:	17		
Pooled investment vehicles	12	799.4	644.8
Current assets	22	8.7	8.3
Current liabilities	23	(0.5)	(0.6)
Total net assets of MP		807.6	652.5
Total net assets of the Scheme at 31 March		3,092.5	3,121.2

The Financial Statements summarise the transactions of the Scheme and deal with the net assets at the disposal of the Trustee. They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the Scheme year. The actuarial position of the Final salary section, which does take account of such obligations, is dealt with in the Report on Actuarial Liabilities included on page 43 and the Actuarial review on page 4 and these Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with that Report.

Signed for and on behalf of the Trustee of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme on 14 October 2024.

Rachel Croft

ITS Limited, represented by Rachel Croft, Chairperson

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Requirement to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement from the Auditor) Regulations 1996, Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) – The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland issued by the Financial Reporting Council and the guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) May 2018 - Financial Reports of Pension Schemes.

The Scheme is established as a Trust under English Law. The registered address for enquiries to the Scheme is Kingfisher Pension Trustee Ltd, 1 Paddington Square, London, W2 1GG.

The Trustee has performed a Going Concern assessment. Amongst other things, their assessment took into account the Scheme funding position, availability of liquid cashflows, the employers ability to continue to fund contributions and the strength of the insurer to continue to fund insured benefits. They also noted that there has been no decision made to wind up the scheme. On this basis the Trustee considers the Going Concern basis appropriate.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated:

a) Investments

- i) Investments are included at fair value.
- ii) All listed investments are stated at the bid price at the date of the Statement of Net Assets.
- iii) Fixed interest securities including bonds short, are stated at their clean prices. Accrued income is accounted for within investment income.
- iv) Pooled investment vehicles are stated at bid price for funds with bid/offer spreads, or single price where there are no bid/offer spreads as provided by the investment manager. Shares in other pooled arrangements have been valued as the latest available net asset value ('NAV'). Non-daily priced funds are valued at the latest available price prior to the year-end date.
- v) Derivatives are stated at fair value.
- Over the counter (OTC) derivatives are stated at fair value using pricing models and relevant market data as at the year-end date.
- Futures are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a specific price at a predetermined future date. They are valued at the fair value as determined by the closing exchange price as at the year-end.
- Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of payments over time based on specified notional amounts. They are valued at the current value of future expected net cash flows arising from the swap, determined using a discounted cash flow model and market data at the reporting date.
- All gains and losses arising on derivative contracts are reported within 'Change in Market Value'.
- vi) Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase arrangements.

Under repurchase (repo) arrangements, the Scheme continues to recognise and value the securities that are delivered out as collateral and includes them in the Financial Statements. The cash received is recognised as an asset and the obligation to pay it back is recognised as a liability.

Under reverse repurchase (reverse repo) arrangements, the Scheme does not recognise the collateral securities received as assets in its Financial Statements. The Scheme does recognise the cash delivered to the counterparty as a receivable in the Financial Statements.

- vii) The Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) is valued on a discounted cash flow basis by the Employer's treasury team. A discount rate of 5.91%, based on property asset backed bonds and adjusted for Kingfisher plc's credit rating, is applied to the projected future cash flows. The discount rate changes to a risk- free rate (3.79%) when the vacant possession value of the properties exceeds the value of the future income streams.
- viii) Annuities purchased in the name of the Trustee, unless immaterial, are included in the Financial Statements using the valuation provided by the Scheme Actuary as at the year-end date. The valuation is determined as the present value of expected future benefit payments for the members covered by the annuity policies. Cashflows in payment are projected using the same assumptions as the 2FO basis used for the latest formal actuarial valuation.

RPI Inflation - Market implied gilt yield curve; CPI Inflation Term dependant rate – RPI less 1% pre 2030, and RPI less 0% post 2030; Discount rate - Market implied gilt yield curve.

b) Investment Income

- i) Interest is accrued on a daily basis.
- ii) Investment income is reported net of attributable tax credits but gross of withholding taxes which are accrued in line with the associated investment income. Irrecoverable withholding taxes are reported separately as a tax charge.
- iii) Investment income arising and distributed from pooled investment vehicles is recognised on an accruals basis. Income arising from underlying investments of the pooled investment vehicles is rolled up and reinvested within the pooled investment vehicles accumulation fund. This is reflected in the unit price and reported within 'Change in Market Value'.
- iv) Receipts from annuity policies held by the Trustee to fund benefits payable to Scheme members are included within investment income on an accruals basis to match benefits payable.
- v) Income from the SPV investment is recognised on an accruals basis. Accrued income due for the period to 31 March but paid post year end is reflected in the year end valuation of the SPV asset.
- vi) Interest is accrued monthly on swap contracts on basis consistent with the terms of the contract.
- vii) Income payable under repurchase agreements or receivable under reverse repurchase agreements is accounted for on an accruals basis.

c) Foreign Currencies

The functional and presentational currency of the Scheme is Sterling. Balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end date. Asset and liability balances are translated at the bid and offer rates respectively. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Differences arising on investment balance translation are accounted for in the change in market value of investments during the year.

d) Contributions

Employer & Employee normal and Employee AVC contributions are accounted for when deducted from pay, apart from contributions deducted from auto-enrolled members during the opt out period which are accounted for on the earlier of receipt or the expiry of the opt out period. Deficit funding and PPF levy contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable in accordance with the Schedule of Contributions.

Employer augmentation contributions are accounted for in accordance with the agreement under which they are being paid. None were paid in the year.

e) Other income

i) Receipts from the insurer to fund death in service benefits payable to Scheme members are included within other income on an accruals basis to match the benefits payable.

f) Payments to members

- i) Benefits are accounted for in the period in which they fall due for payment. Where there is a choice, benefits are accounted for in the period in which the member notifies the Trustee of their decision on the type or amount of benefit to be taken or, if there is no member choice, they are accounted for on the date of retirement or leaving. Pensions in payment are accounted for in the period to which they relate.
- ii) Opt outs are accounted for when the Scheme is notified of the opt out.
- iii) Individual transfers in or out are accounted for when member liability is discharged/accepted which is normally when paid or received.

g) Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. The Final Salary Section bears all the costs of administration and investment management. Money purchase annual management charges are deducted directly from the members' retirement accounts.

h) Accounting estimated and judgements

No significant judgements have been made by the Trustee in the application of the principal accounting policies. The Trustees make estimate and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. For the Scheme, the Trustees believe the only estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are related to the valuation of the Scheme investments and, in particular, those classified in Level 3 of the fair-value hierarchy. Explanation of the key assumptions underpinning the valuation of investments are included within (a) above.

2. Contributions

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Employer						
Normal	-	62.2	62.2	-	64.3	64.3
Deficit Funding	-	-	-	3.6	-	3.6
	-	62.2	62.2	3.6	64.3	67.9
Employee						
Normal	-	10.0	10.0	-	8.9	8.9
	-	72.2	72.2	3.6	73.2	76.8

Employer normal contributions include contributions in respect of salary sacrifice arrangements.

Deficit funding contributions ceased in August 2022 in accordance with the SOC signed on 30 August 2022.

Employer normal contributions received in the MP Section, comprise £78.4m (2023: £75.1m) of normal contributions, offset by £16.2m (2023: £10.8m) SPV income in accordance with the MOA. SPV income received in the FS Section is shown in note 8.

Contributions received in the MP Section are allocated to Scheme members.

3. Other income

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Claims on term insurance	2.7	-	2.7	3.4	-	3.4

4. Benefits payable

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Pensions	68.6	-	68.6	64.5	-	64.5
Commutations of pensions and lump sum						
retirement benefits	18.3	6.4	24.7	14.9	4.5	19.4
Lump sum death benefits	4.7	0.2	4.9	4.5	-	4.5
Purchase of annuities	0.6	-	0.6	0.5	-	0.5
	92.2	6.6	98.8	84.4	4.5	88.9

5. Payments to and on account of leavers

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Pension sharing orders	1.1	-	1.1	0.9	0.4	1.3
Individual transfers to other schemes	3.9	20.7	24.6	27.5	13.9	41.4
	5.0	20.7	25.7	28.4	14.3	42.7

6. Other payments

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Premiums on term insurance paid to the						
insurer	2.7	-	2.7	2.4	-	2.4

7. Administrative expenses

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Administration and processing	3.5	1.3	4.8	2.9	1.2	4.1
Actuarial fees	0.3	-	0.3	0.6	-	0.6
Audit*	0.1	-	0.1	0.1	-	0.1
Legal and professional fees	0.2	-	0.2	0.2	-	0.2
Trustee fees	0.1	-	0.1	0.1	-	0.1
PPF Levy	-	-	-	0.1	-	0.1
	4.2	1.3	5.5	4.0	1.2	5.2

*Audit fees for the year to 31 March 2024 were £88,700 (2023: £89,610).

8. Investment income

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Dividend income from equities	0.3	-	0.3	-	-	-
Income from bonds	19.0	-	19.0	19.6	-	19.6
Income from pooled investment vehicles	4.6	-	4.6	5.0	-	5.0
Income from SPV	16.2	-	16.2	16.2	-	16.2
Annuity income	55.6	-	55.6	55.1	-	55.1
Net interest on cash and cash instruments	(19.0)	-	(19.0)	(14.6)	-	(14.6)
Net interest from derivatives	(2.2)	-	(2.2)	(5.5)	-	(5.5)
Other	0.1	-	0.1	0.1	-	0.1
	74.6	-	74.6	75.9	-	75.9

Net interest on cash and cash instruments includes £23.3m (2023: £17.3m) of interest payments payable under repurchase agreements. Other income consists of income from class actions and stock lending (see note 21).

SPV income of £16.2m received from 1 April 2023 has been transferred from the FS Section to the MP Section in accordance with the SOC signed on 27 September 2022. This income transfer is shown in 'transfers' between sections' on the Fund Account on page 20.

9. Investment management expenses

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Administration, management and custody	2.9	-	2.9	2.4	-	2.4
Performance measurement services	0.1	-	0.1	0.1	-	0.1
Other advisory fees	-	-	-	0.2	-	0.2
	3.0	-	3.0	2.7	-	2.7

10. Transfer between sections

Transfer between sections comprise:

£m FS Section	2024 Total	2023 Total
Amounts disinvested from L&G which are subsequently transferred from the MP section to fund benefits paid under the FS section	6.8	5.5
Amounts transferred from the FS section to the MP section under the MOA agreement between the Company and the Scheme	(16.2)	(10.8)
	(9.4)	(5.3)

11.Tax

The Kingfisher Pension Scheme is a registered pension Scheme for tax purposes under the Finance Act 2004. The Scheme is therefore exempt from taxation except for certain withholding taxes relating to overseas investment income. Tax charges are accrued on the same basis as the investment income to which they relate as stated in Note1 (b) (ii).

12. Pooled Investment Vehicles (PIVs)

The Final Salary Section holdings of PIVs are analysed below:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Bond funds	335.9	311.7
Equity funds	34.8	35.8
Property and Farmland	0.4	0.6
Alternative asset funds	128.5	234.6
	499.6	582.7

The Scheme is the sole investor in an alternative asset pooled fund managed by LGT Capital Partners, which is included in the alternative asset pooled fund total above. The LGT Capital Partners fund invests in a range of underlying alternative asset pooled funds. The underlying exposures are:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Private Equity Funds	23.8	54.0
Hedge Funds	28.9	60.8
Fixed Income Funds	12.2	19.2
Property Funds	5.3	16.6
Insurance Linked Strategy Funds	6.6	13.8
Infrastructure Funds	1.2	1.8
Cash	1.3	5.7
	79.3	171.9

The Money Purchase Section holdings of PIVs are analysed below:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Equity funds	107.5	83.3
Bond funds	1.5	1.8
Cash funds	45.2	33.9
Diversified Growth funds	644.9	525.5
Property funds	0.3	0.3
	799.4	644.8

All Money Purchase investment assets are designated to members. Assets are allocated to provide benefits to the individuals on whose behalf the contributions were paid and the assets identified in the Statement of Net Assets do not form a common pool of assets available for members generally. Members receive an annual statement confirming the contributions paid on their behalf and the value of their money purchase rights.

13. Derivatives

The Trustee has authorised the use of derivatives by their investment managers as part of their investment strategy for the Scheme.

The Scheme has entered into interest rate and inflation swap contracts, to alter the duration and inflation exposure of the bond assets to better reflect the Scheme's liabilities and cash flow profile.

Futures are used to adjust interest rate exposures and replicate bond positions. Futures often provide a cheap and efficient way of modifying portfolio risk.

Summarised details of the derivatives held at the year-end are set out below:

£m		2024		2023
	Assets	Liabilities	Assets	Liabilities
Swaps	353.6	(395.1)	383.2	(402.8)
Futures	0.1	-	0.1	-
	353.7	(395.1)	383.3	(402.8)

(i) Swaps

The Scheme had derivative contracts outstanding at the year-end relating to its LDI investment portfolio. These contracts are traded over the counter (OTC) and are shown in the following table:

£m	Number of	Notional			2024
Nature of Contract	Contracts	Principal	Maturity	£ Asset	£ Liability
UK- Interest rate swaps	25	319.6	0-5 Years	5.5	(45.0)
	28	410.2	5-10 Years	48.6	(27.6)
	41	812.2	10-20 Years	63.1	(59.7)
	52	862.2	20-30 Years	78.2	(92.7)
	36	557.3	30-40 Years	24.4	(54.4)
	13	126.6	40-50 Years	7.1	(27.1)
UK- RPI	32	629.7	0-5 Years	39.5	(41.3)
	34	456.6	5-10 Years	37.5	(26.5)
	42	494.6	10-20 Years	19.8	(12.0)
	36	316.1	20-30 Years	11.2	(5.3)
	33	217.0	30-40 Years	16.0	(2.9)
	7	20.8	40-50 Years	2.7	(0.6)
				353.6	(395.1)

The counterparties to the swaps are banking institutions. Collateral, either gilts or cash, is held to support the unrealised gain/loss on swaps. At the year-end, the net value of collateral posted to counterparties was £54.6m (2023: £38.6m).

	£m		£m
Barclays Bank	(8.9)	HSBC Bank Plc	9.3
BNPParibas	1.0	LCH Clearnet	(37.9)
Citigroup	1.1	Merrill Lynch International	(12.0)
Credit Suisse International	0.8	Morgan Stanley & Co International	9.7
Goldman Sachs International	(15.2)	Natwest Markets Plc	(2.7)
		UBS AG	0.2

The positive and negative values represent collateral held or (pledged) by the Scheme to support the value of the swaps.

ii) Futures – These contracts are exchange traded

£m	Notional			2024
Nature	Amount	Duration	£ Asset	£ Liability
UK fixed interest future	4.3	Jun-24	0.1	-

14.Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)

In January 2011 UK property assets with a market value of £83m were sold to the Kingfisher Scottish Limited Partnership (KSLP) and leased back to B&Q plc under standard commercial lease terms. The KSLP gives recourse for the Scheme to the property assets in the event of Kingfisher's insolvency. The Kingfisher Group retains control over these properties including the flexibility to substitute alternative properties. The Trustee's partnership interest in KSLP entitles it to the majority of the income of the partnership until 2031. At the end of this term, Kingfisher plc has the option to acquire the Trustee's partnership interest in KSLP. A further two UK properties with a combined market value of £119m were transferred to the partnership in June 2011 and leased back to B&Q plc under standard commercial lease terms.

On an ongoing basis, the Scheme receives a regular income stream from the partnership that forms part of the annual cash contribution from the Group to the Pension Scheme under the Schedule of Contributions.

SPV income received during the Scheme year has been transferred from the FS Section to the MP Section In accordance with the SOC signed on 27 September 2022.

15.Insurance Policies

The Scheme held bulk buy-in insurance policies at the year-end as follows:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Legal & General Assurance Society Limited	155.7	166.2
Pensions Insurance Corporation	127	137.2
Aviva Life & Pensions UK Limited	600.8	644.7
	883.5	948.1

In addition to the above, the Trustee holds annuity contracts that secure the benefits of a small number of pensioner members. The value of these contracts is considered immaterial and therefore the Trustee continues to recognise these contracts at a £nil valuation.

16. Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)

£m	2024	2023
Final Salary	Total	Total
Prudential	13.7	14.5
Legal & General	0.8	0.9
BlackRock	1.2	1.1
Phoenix Life	0.1	0.1
	15.8	16.6

AVCs paid by members of the Final Salary Section to secure additional money purchase benefits, are invested separately from the other Scheme assets to ensure there are individual funds for each member which are clearly identifiable. Each member of the Money Purchase Section is allocated an individual clearly identifiable investment fund (known as a retirement account) and AVCs paid by such members are invested in the same retirement account.

17.Investment reconciliation

Reconciliation of investments held at beginning and end of year.

		Purchases at			
£m	Value at 1 April 2023	cost & derivative payments	Sales proceeds & derivative receipts	Change in market value	Value at 31 March 2024
Final Salary Section					
Bonds	1,234.9	661.0	(601.2)	(100.6)	1,194.1
Pooled investment vehicles	582.7	1.7	(119.1)	34.3	499.6
Derivatives	(19.5)	256.9	(276.3)	(2.5)	(41.4)
Special Purpose Vehicle	121.4	-	-	(13.2)	108.2
Insurance Policies	948.1	-	-	(64.6)	883.5
AVC Investments	16.6	-	(1.6)	0.8	15.8
	2,884.2	919.6	(998.2)	(145.8)	2,659.8
Cash deposits	56.8			1.1	64.2
Other investment balances	(503.6)			-	(455.5)
Net investment assets	2,437.4	919.6	(998.2)	(144.7)	2,268.5
Money Purchase Section *					
Net investment assets	644.8	144.2	(88.3)	98.7	799.4

*The assets are allocated to members of the Scheme.

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments during the year.

Other investment balances include £454.7m of repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements (2023: £502.7m).

18.Transaction costs

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sales proceeds. Direct transaction costs include costs charged to the Scheme such as fees, commission and stamp duty. Transaction costs for the Scheme year were nil (2023: nil).

Transaction costs are also borne by the Scheme in relation to transactions in pooled investment vehicles. Such costs are taken into account in calculating the bid/offer spread of these investments and are not separately reported.

19. Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

At the year end, within other investment assets and liabilities, amounts payable under repurchase agreements amounted to £489.0m (2023: £576.1m) and amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements amounted to £34.3m (2023: £73.4m). At the year-end £478.3m (2023: £503.4m) of bonds reported in Scheme assets are held by counterparties under repurchase agreements.

The counterparties to the repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements are banking institutions. Collateral, either gilts or cash, is pledged to support the change in value of the gilts used to enter the repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. At the year-end, the net value of collateral posted to counterparties was £12.1m (2023: £4.2m).

	£m		£m
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce	0.9	LCH Clearnet	2.8
Insight Government Liquidity Fund	(0.3)	Natwest Markets Plc	2.0
Goldman Sachs International	(0.5)	Santander	3.4
HSBC Bank Plc	3.4	Société Générale	0.4

20. Investment Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments has been determined using the following fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: Unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical instruments that the entity can access at the measurement date.
- Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices) that are observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly.
- > Level 3: Inputs are unobservable, i.e. for which market data is unavailable.

Where multiple inputs are involved in determining the fair value of an instrument, the categorisation is based on the lowest level input (i.e. highest number) that is significant.

£m				
At 31 March 2024	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Final Salary Section				
Bonds	-	1,194.1	-	1,194.1
Pooled investment vehicles	-	370.7	128.9	499.6
Derivatives	0.1	(41.5)	-	(41.4)
Special Purpose Vehicle	-	-	108.2	108.2
Insurance Policies	-	-	883.5	883.5
AVC investments	-	15.8	-	15.8
Cash deposits	64.2	-	-	64.2
Other investment balances	(0.8)	(454.7)	-	(455.5)
	63.5	1,084.4	1,120.6	2,268.5
Money Purchase Section				
Pooled investment vehicles	-	799.4	-	799.4

£m	Level 1	Level 2		
At 31 March 2023	(restated)	(restated)	Level 3	Total
Final Salary Section				
Bonds	-	1,234.9	-	1,234.9
Pooled investment vehicles	-	347.5	235.2	582.7
Derivatives	0.1	(19.6)	-	(19.5)
Special Purpose Vehicle	-	-	121.4	121.4
Insurance Policies	-	-	948.1	948.1
AVC investments	-	16.6	-	16.6
Cash deposits	56.8	-	-	56.8
Other investment balances	(0.9)	(502.7)	-	(503.6)
	56.0	1,076.7	1,304.7	2,437.4
Money Purchase Section				
Pooled investment vehicles	-	644.8	-	644.8

The Trustee has revisited the Swaps within the Derivatives classification and now considers the interest and inflation swaps to be valued as level 2, previously level 3, as the valuations are based on observable inputs. The current year and prior year Fair Value Hierarchy tables reflect this change.

21.Investment risks

Investment risks

FRS 102 requires the disclosure of information in relation to certain investment risks. These risks are set out by FRS 102 as follows:

Credit risk: this is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Market risk: this comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

- **Currency risk**: this is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
- Interest rate risk: this is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
- Other price risk: this is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Scheme has exposure to these risks because of the investments it makes to implement its investment strategy described in the Trustee's Report for the Final Salary and Money Purchase Sections. The Trustee manages investment risks, including credit risk and market risk, within agreed risk limits which are set taking into account the Scheme's strategic investment objectives. These investment objectives and risk limits are implemented through the investment management agreements in place with the Scheme's investment managers and monitored by the Trustee by regular reviews of the investment portfolios.

Further information on the Trustee's approach to risk management and the Scheme's exposures to credit and market risks are set out below.

The risk disclosures below do not cover AVCs as they are deemed to be immaterial.

The insurance policies (note 15) exactly match the liabilities that they cover, and the Financial Services Compensation Scheme stand behind authorised insurance companies to provide additional protection. The insurance policies do not therefore feature in the risk disclosures.

Concentration risk

Excluding gilts, the Scheme's investments that constitute more than 5% of total net assets of the Scheme are as follows:

£m	2024	2023
FS Section	Total	Total
Aviva Life & Pensions UK Limited	19.4%	20.7%
Legal & General Assurance Society Limited	5.0%	5.3%
£m	2024	2023
MP Section	Total	Total
Lifestyle Fund	18.2%	14.8%

Final Salary Section

(i) Credit risk

The FS Section is subject to credit risk as the Scheme invests directly in bonds, OTC derivatives, has cash balances and enters into repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements. The Scheme also invests in pooled investment vehicles and is therefore directly exposed to credit risk in relation to the instruments it holds in the pooled investment vehicles and is indirectly exposed to credit risks arising on the financial instruments held by the pooled investment vehicles.

Analysis of direct credit risk:

£m		Non-investment		
At 31 March 2024	Investment grade	grade	Unrated	Total
Bonds	1,194.1	-	-	1,194.1
Special Purpose Vehicle	-	-	108.2	108.2
OTC Derivatives	(41.4)	-	-	(41.4)
Cash deposits	64.2	-	-	64.2
Repos	(454.7)	-	-	(454.7)
PIVs	-	-	499.6	499.6
	762.2	-	607.8	1,370.0

£m	l	Non-investment		
At 31 March 2023	Investment grade	grade	Unrated	Total
Bonds	1,265.2	-	-	1,265.2
Bonds short	(30.3)	-	-	(30.3)
Special Purpose Vehicle	-	-	121.4	121.4
OTC Derivatives	(19.5)	-	-	(19.5)
Cash deposits	56.8	-	-	56.8
Repos	(502.7)	-	-	(502.7)
PIVs	-	-	582.7	582.7
	769.5	-	704.1	1,473.6

Credit risk arising on bonds is mitigated by investing largely in government bonds where the credit risk is minimal, or corporate bonds which are rated at least investment grade. Currently the Scheme's directly held bonds are all in gilts and quasi-government bonds. This is the position at the year end and the prior year end.

Credit risk arising on derivatives depends on whether the derivative is exchange traded or over the counter (OTC). OTC derivative contracts are not guaranteed by any regulated exchange and therefore the Scheme is subject to risk of failure of the counterparty. The credit risk for OTC swaps is reduced by collateral arrangements (see note 13 (i)). Credit risk also arises on forward foreign currency contracts. There are no collateral arrangements for these contracts, but all counterparties are required to be at least investment grade.

Cash is held within financial institutions which are at least investment grade credit rated.

The Scheme has the facility to lend certain bonds under a Trustee approved stock lending programme. At the year end the Scheme had lent £111m of fixed interest bonds (2023: £46m). The Scheme held collateral delivered to secure obligations in respect of loaned securities consisting of cash, bonds and equities with a market value of not less than 102% of the market value of the transferred securities. If the transferred market value of the collateral falls below 100%, the Scheme will enforce prompt delivery of additional collateral.

Credit risk on repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements is mitigated through collateral arrangements as disclosed in note 19.

The Scheme's holdings in pooled investment vehicles are unrated. Direct credit risk arising from pooled investment vehicles is mitigated by the underlying assets of the pooled arrangements being ring-fenced from the pooled manager, the regulatory environments in which the pooled managers operate and diversification of investments amongst several pooled arrangements. The Trustee carries out due diligence checks on the appointment of new pooled investment managers and on an ongoing basis monitor any changes to the regulatory and operating environment of the pooled manager.

A summary of pooled investment vehicles by type of arrangement is as follows:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Unit linked insurance contracts	34.8	35.8
Authorised unit trusts	106.7	102.0
Open ended investment companies	229.2	209.7
Limited liability companies	128.9	235.2
	499.6	582.7

Indirect credit risk arises in relation to underlying investments held in the bond pooled investment vehicles. This risk is mitigated by only investing in pooled funds which invest in at least investment grade credit rated securities.

(ii) Currency risk

The Scheme is subject to currency risk because some of the Scheme's investments are held in overseas markets, either as segregated investments or via pooled investment vehicles. The Trustee limits overseas currency exposure through currency hedging.

The Scheme's total net unhedged exposure by major currency at the year-end was as follows:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Currency		
US Dollar	22.1	19.4
Euro	3.7	2.4
Japanese Yen	4.2	4.3
Other	10.5	13.9

Currencies included in 'Other' are predominantly emerging market currency exposures.

(iii) Interest rate and inflation risk

The Scheme is subject to interest rate risk on the LDI investments comprising bonds and interest rate and inflation swaps held either as segregated investments or through pooled vehicles and cash. The Scheme has hedged 96% of interest and inflation rate risk. At the year end the Scheme exposures comprised:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Direct		
Bonds	1,194.1	1,265.2
Derivatives	(41.4)	(19.5)
Indirect		
Bond PIVs	335.9	311.7
Alternative asset PIVs	128.5	234.6
Special Purpose Vehicle	108.2	121.4

(iv) Other price risk

Other price risk arises principally in relation to the Scheme's return seeking portfolio which includes equities and alternative assets held in pooled vehicles.

The Scheme manages this exposure to other price risk by constructing a diverse portfolio of investments across various markets. At the year end, the Scheme's exposure to investments subject to other price risk was:

£m	2024	2023
	Total	Total
Indirect		
Equity PIVs	34.8	35.8
Property & Farmland	0.4	0.6
Special Purpose Vehicle	108.2	121.4
Other alternative asset PIVs	128.5	234.6

Money Purchase Section

(i) Direct credit risk

Legal and General invest all the Scheme's funds in fund manager unit linked funds which are party to reinsurance arrangements. In the event of default by Legal and General, the Scheme is protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(ii) Indirect credit and market risks

The MP section was also subject to indirect credit and market risk arising from the underlying investments held in the funds. The funds which have significant exposure to these risks are set out below:

2024 and 2023				
Money Purchase Section	Credit risk	Foreign exchange risk	Interest rate risk	Other price risk
Lifestyle fund	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
Passive Equity Fund	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark
Emerging Markets Fund	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark
Ethical Fund	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark
Shariah Fund	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark
Pre-Retirement Fund	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	×
Pre-Retirement Inflation Linked Fund	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	×
Money Market Fund	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	×
Diversified Return Fund	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
Property Fund	\checkmark	×	×	\checkmark

The analysis of these risks set out above is at Scheme level. Member level risk exposures will depend on the funds invested in by members. The Trustee has selected the above funds and have considered the indirect risks in the context of the investment strategy described in the Trustee's Report.

22.Current Assets

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Cash balances	23.0	1.3	24.3	35.1	1.3	36.4
Contributions due	-	7.2	7.2	-	6.8	6.8
VAT recoverable	0.4	-	0.4	0.4	-	0.4
Other debtors	1.6	0.2	1.8	2.4	0.2	2.6
	25.0	8.7	33.7	37.9	8.3	46.2

Cash balances held in the MP Section includes £0.7m unallocated to Scheme members (2023: £0.7m). All remaining current assets are allocated to Scheme members.

23.Current Liabilities

£m			2024			2023
	FS	MP	Total	FS	MP	Total
Expense accruals	1.7	-	1.7	1.1	-	1.1
Unpaid benefits	5.9	-	5.9	4.7	-	4.7
Other creditors	1.0	0.5	1.5	0.8	0.6	1.4
	8.6	0.5	9.1	6.6	0.6	7.2

Current liabilities due from the MP Section are payable to the FS Section on behalf of Scheme members.

24. Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties of the Scheme have been disclosed in the annual report as follows:

The Scheme has received employer contributions in respect of eight of the directors of the Trustee Board who are or were contributing members of the Scheme. These were paid in accordance with the Schedule of Contributions and the Rules of the Scheme.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

The costs incurred by Kingfisher plc in providing Scheme administration services are rechargeable to the Scheme. Amounts charged during the year were £808k (2023: £858k). Kingfisher plc also recovers VAT on administration services paid by the Scheme. The VAT paid back to the Scheme during the year was £587k (2023: £380k). The balance owed by Kingfisher plc at year end is £50k (2023: £19k).

Helen Jones and Sally Clifton both receive pension payments from the Scheme. The pensions are calculated in accordance with the Rules of the Scheme.

Trustee Director Fees are analysed in the table below:

£ 000'	2024	2023
	Total	Total
BESTrustees Limited	11.7	79.4
ITS Limited	54.2	-
Dermot Courtier	35.7	-
Helen Jones	3.0	11.1
Sally Clifton	-	7.3
	104.6	97.8

The amount owed to Trustee Directors at the year-end was £5k (2023: £17k).

25.Self-investment

No investment is permitted in the shares or bonds of Kingfisher plc, or Companies majority owned by Kingfisher plc, other than indirectly through investment in pooled funds. The exposure to Kingfisher plc through pooled funds is less than 0.1% of total Scheme assets.

26. Contingencies and commitments

At 31 March 2024 the Scheme had the following outstanding undrawn capital commitments:

£m	2024	2023
HayFin Fund III	8.7	2.4
BlackRock renewables fund	1.0	1.4
	9.7	3.8

As at 31 March 2024, a final premium is due under the Aviva buy-in policy. The final premium cannot be determined until data cleansing has been finalised; and the Trustee has signed the final benefit specification, indicating that the benefit specification (including the data) includes the correct beneficiaries and the benefits have been correctly specified.

Data cleansing is required due to the shift in membership from when the data was originally supplied to the Insurer and the following twelve-month period. The completion of this exercise ensures that the Scheme and the Insurer are not adversely affected. Due to the complexities of the data and ongoing GMP equalisation project, the Trustee has agreed an extension with Aviva to October 2024 to complete this work.

Should further changes be notified after the final premium has been calculated, additional charges may be incurred.

In addition to the expected contingent liability for a potential premium adjustment once data validation is complete, there is a further potential liability in relation to annuity income once the final reconciliation has been completed of actual amounts due versus lump sum monthly amounts received to date.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

High court case regarding section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993

The Virgin Media Ltd v NTL Pension Trustees II decision, handed down by the High Court on 16 June 2023, considered the implications of section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993.

In a judgment delivered on 25 July 2024, the Court of Appeal unanimously upheld the decision of the High Court, and the case has the potential to cause significant issues in the pensions industry. The Trustee will investigate the possible implications with its advisers in due course, but it is not possible at present to estimate the potential impact, if any, on the Scheme.

Independent auditor's statement about contributions to the Trustee of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme

We have examined the summary of contributions to the Kingfisher Pension Scheme (the 'scheme') for the scheme year ended 31 March 2024 which is set out in the Trustee's report on page 40.

Qualified statement about contributions payable under the schedule of contributions

In our opinion, except for the effects of the departure from the schedule of contributions described in the Basis for qualified statement about contributions paragraph, contributions for the Scheme year ended 31 March 2024 as reported in the summary of contributions and payable under the schedule of contributions have in all material respects been paid materially at least in accordance with the schedule of contributions certified by the Scheme actuary on 27 September 2022.

Basis for qualified statement about contributions

As described on page 40, normal contributions due under the schedule of contributions, totalling £2m, were received 6 days later than the due date included on the Schedule of Contributions.

Scope of work on statement about contributions

Our examination involves obtaining evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that contributions reported in the summary of contributions have in all material respects been paid at least in accordance with the schedule of contributions. This includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts of contributions payable to the scheme and the timing of those payments under the schedule of contributions.

Respective responsibilities of Trustee and the auditor

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustee's responsibilities set out on page 16 the scheme's Trustee is responsible for preparing, and from time to time reviewing and if necessary revising, a schedule of contributions and for monitoring whether contributions are made to the scheme by the employer in accordance with the schedule of contributions.

It is our responsibility to provide a statement about contributions paid under the schedule of contributions and to report our opinion to you.

Use of our statement

This statement is made solely to the Trustee, as a body, in accordance with the Pensions Act 1995 and Regulations made thereunder. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustee those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's statement about contributions and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trustee as a body, for our work, for this statement, or for the opinions we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants Cardiff

14 October 2024

Summary of contributions

The Trustee is responsible under pensions legislation for preparing, maintaining and from time to time revising a schedule of contributions showing the rates of contributions payable towards the Scheme by or on behalf of the employer and the active members of the Scheme and the dates on or before which such contributions are to be paid. The Trustee is also responsible for keeping records in respect of contributions received in respect of any active member of the Scheme and for adopting risk-based processes to monitor whether contributions are made to the Scheme by the employer in accordance with the schedule of contributions. Where breaches of the schedule occur, the Trustee is required by the Pensions Acts 1995 and 2004 to consider making reports to The Pensions Regulator and the members.

Trustee's Summary of Contributions payable under the Schedules in respect of the Scheme year ended 31 March 2024

This Summary of Contributions has been prepared by, and is the responsibility of, the Trustee. It sets out the employer and employee contributions payable to the Scheme under the Schedule of Contributions certified by the actuary on 27 September 2022 in respect of the Scheme year ended 31 March 2024. The Scheme Auditor reports on contributions payable under the Schedule in the Auditor's Statement about Contributions.

Contributions due to the MP Section from Screwfix Direct Limited totalling £2m were paid 6 days late in August 2023. This was due to a process change in the interface file submission. No members were financially disadvantaged as a result of the late payment. All remaining contributions were paid by their due date on the schedule of contributions.

Further information on the composition of the contribution amounts can be found in note 2 and in the actuarial update in the Trustee Report on page 4.

Contributions payable under the Schedules in respect of the Scheme year	£m
Employer	
Normal contributions	78.4
Employee	
Normal contributions	10.0
Contributions received	88.4
SPV income	(16.2)
Contributions payable under the Schedules and as per Fund	
Account	72.2

Signed on behalf of the Trustee of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme on 14 October 2024

Rachel Croft

ITS Limited, represented by Rachel Croft, Chairperson

Actuary's calculation of technical provisions

Appendix C: Technical provisions certificate

My certification of the calculation of the technical provisions is included below. I am also required to certify the adequacy of the contribution rates set out in the schedule of contributions. That certificate is appended to the contribution schedule.

Actuarial certification of the calculation of technical provisions as required by regulation 7(4)(a) of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Funding) Regulations 2005

Name of scheme:

Kingfisher Pension Scheme

Calculation of technical provisions

I certify that, in my opinion, the calculation of the scheme's technical provisions as at 31 March 2022 is made in accordance with regulations under section 222 of the Pensions Act 2004. The calculation uses a method and assumptions determined by the Trustee of the Scheme and set out in the statement of funding principles dated September 2022.

Date	27 September 2022
Name	Lisa Deas
Qualification	Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
Name of Employer	Hymans Robertson LLP
Address	20 Waterloo Street
	Glasgow
	G2 6DB

Actuary's Certification of the Schedule of Contributions

Kingfisher Pension Scheme Schedule of Contributions – Actuarial Certificate

Adequacy of contributions

In my opinion, the contributions shown in this schedule are such that the statutory funding objective can be expected to continue to be met for the period for which the schedule is to be in force.

Consistency with statement of funding principles

In my opinion, this schedule of contributions is consistent with the statement of funding principles dated September 2022.

Please note that the adequacy of contributions statement in this certificate relates to the Scheme's statutory funding objective. For the avoidance of doubt this certificate does not mean that the contributions shown in this schedule would be enough to secure the Scheme's full liabilities with annuities if the Scheme were to wind up.

Date	27	September 2022
Name		Lisa Deas
Qualification		Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
Name of Employer		Hymans Robertson LLP
Address		20 Waterloo Street
		Glasgow
		G2 6DB

This certificate is provided to meet the requirements of regulation 10(6) of The Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Funding) Regulations 2005.

Report on Actuarial Liabilities (forming part of the Trustee's report)

Under Section 222 of the Pensions Act 2004, every Scheme is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective, which is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover its technical provisions. The technical provisions represent the present value of the benefits members are entitled to base on pensionable service to the valuation date. This is assessed at least every 3 years using the assumptions agreed between the Trustee and the Employer and set out in the Statement of Funding Principles, which is available to Scheme members on request.

The most recent full actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out by Lisa Deas as at 31 March 2022. This showed that on that date the value of the technical provisions was: £3,323m (2019: £3,416m). The value of the assets at that date was £3,506m (2019: £3,573m). The technical provisions funding level was 106% (2019: 105%).

The value of the technical provisions is based on assumptions about several factors that will influence the Scheme in future, such as the levels of investment return, when members will retire and how long members will live. The method and significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the technical provisions were set by the Trustee after taking advice from Lisa Deas and are as follows (all assumptions adopted are set out in the Appendix to the Statement of Funding Principles):

Method

The actuarial method to be used in the calculation of the technical provisions is the Projected Unit Method.

Significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate:	
Pre-2030:	The pre-retirement discount rate is the market implied fixed interest gilt yield curve plus 1% p.a.
Post-2030:	The post-retirement discount rate is market implied fixed interest gilt yield curve.
Inflation:	Implied inflation from swaps market curves.
Pension increases:	The Scheme Rules include provision for increases in line with RPI price inflation up to a maximum of 5% and a minimum of 0% each year, to pensions in excess of GMP. For the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2022 these increases are assumed to follow the assumed rate of price inflation adjusted to allow for the cap and floor.
Mortality:	Base tables The mortality base tables are a suite of bespoke assumptions which reflect the characteristics of the Scheme's membership. They make allowance for observed variations in mortality according to age, gender reason for retirement (illness or normal health), pension amount, salary, postcode based lifestyle group. The assumptions adopted vary according to the characteristics of each individual member.
	<i>Future improvements</i> Future improvements in longevity will be assumed to be in line with the CMI 2021 model with no weighting on 2020 or 2021 data, initial addition to improvements of +0.3% p.a. and long term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a. tapering to 0% p.a. over ages 85 to 110.
GMP equalisation:	An estimate of 0.2% of liabilities has been allowed for to reflect the expected impact of GMP equalisation
Lisa Deas Fellow of the Inst Hymans Robertso 27 September 20	

Compliance statement

Enquiries about the Scheme

Any enquiries concerning the Scheme or requests for copies of this Report, individual benefit statements, the Trust Deed and Rules or the latest report on the Actuarial Valuation of the Scheme should be addressed to the Scheme Secretary at the office of Kingfisher plc as noted on page 2.

Transfer Values

All transfer values paid during the year were calculated as cash equivalents (within the meaning of Chapter IV Part IV of the Pension Schemes Act 1993) and verified in the manner prescribed under Section 97 of the Act. No allowance for discretionary benefits was made in the calculation of cash equivalents.

Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure

Any questions you have should be directed to the Administrators first of all, as they have full details of your membership of the Scheme. The Administrators will make every attempt to answer your questions, but if you have a complaint or dispute that you cannot resolve with the Administrators, you should use the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure, via Kingfisher Group Pensions department. Contact details for the Scheme are noted on page 2.

This is a formal procedure, put in place by the Trustee, to settle any complaints and disputes about the Scheme. It is available on request to all members and beneficiaries, including leavers who still have rights in the Scheme, pensioners and other individuals who have an entitlement or possible entitlement in the Scheme.

There are two stages:

Stage one

Kingfisher Group Pensions Department will give you a form to complete to register your complaint. If you wish, you may nominate a representative to make the complaint on your behalf. Your complaint will be investigated by the Scheme Secretary, and you will normally receive a response within 2 months. The response will include details about how you progress to Stage two of the procedure, if your complaint is not resolved at Stage one.

Stage two

If you are unhappy with the response from the Scheme Secretary, you can refer your complaint to the Trustee. You should do this within six months of receiving the Pensions Director's response. You will normally be sent a response within one month of your complaint.

Pensions Ombudsman

If the problem remains unresolved, members then have the facility to refer the matter to The Pensions Ombudsman who can be contacted at:

10 South Colonnade, Canary Wharf, E14 4PU Tel : 0800 917 4487 Email : enquiries@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk Web : www.pensions-ombudsman.org.uk

Compliance statement (continued)

Other Pensions Organisations

The Pensions Regulator

Kingfisher Pension Scheme is regulated by the Pensions Regulator who regulates the running of occupational pension Schemes and can intervene if those responsible have failed in their duties. Their address is: Customer Support, The Pensions Regulator, Telecom House, 125-135 Preston Road, Brighton BN1 6AF

Tel: 0345 600 0707 Email: customersupport@tpr.gov.uk Web: <u>www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk</u>

Pension Protection Fund (PPF)

The PPF was set up in April 2005 to protect the pensions of most members of defined benefit Schemes where employers get into financial difficulties and leave a Scheme without enough funds to pay the pensions in full. The PPF can be contacted at: PO Box 254, Wymondham, NR18 8DN

Tel : 0345 600 2541 Email : <u>information@ppf.co.uk</u> Web : <u>www.ppf.co.uk</u>

The Pension Service

Contact the Pension Service about State Pension eligibility, claims, payments and complaints, and to update your details. Their address is: The Pension Service, Post Handling Site A, Wolverhampton, WV98 1AF *Tel: 0800 731 0469*

MoneyHelper

Following changes in Pension Legislation, more options are now available. To help you understand your retirement options, the Government has set up a free and impartial service, called MoneyHelper. (MoneyHelper will not recommend any products or tell you what to do with your money). *Website Address: www.moneyhelper.org.uk*

Phone: 0800 011 3797

Tax Status with HM Revenue & Customs

The Scheme is a 'registered pension Scheme' for tax purposes under the Finance Act 2004. As such most of its income and investment gains are free of taxation. However, the Scheme cannot reclaim certain amounts of withholding taxes relating to overseas investment income.

Constitution

The Kingfisher Pension Scheme is constituted by a Trust Deed and is administered in accordance with the Rules contained in the Deed. Members may inspect this Trust Deed on application to the Trustee or Scheme Administrator. The Final Salary Section of the Scheme is contracted-out of the State Second Pension.

Member Information

Membership of the Pension Scheme is voluntary. The Trustee Board, together with the participating companies, is committed to providing easy-to-understand information to existing members and those eligible to join. This information includes:

- Personal Benefit Statements, which give individual members information annually on the benefits they may receive.
- 'Member Guide', the explanatory booklets for the Money Purchase Section and Final Salary Section.
- 'AVC Fund Fact Sheets' for members of the Final Salary Section giving full details of the available AVC options.

All of these publications are online at our website <u>www.kingfisherpensions.com</u>.

Kingfisher Pension Scheme - Money Purchase Section annual governance statement by the Chair of the Trustee Board

This Annual Statement regarding governance has been prepared in accordance with:

- Regulation 23 of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1715) as amended by the Occupational Pension Schemes (Charges and Governance) Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/879); and
- The Occupational Pension Schemes (Administration and Disclosure) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 (SI 2018/233).

Summary for year ended 31st March 2024.

Money Purchase Section investments: £799m (2023: £645m) Total membership: 71,665 (2023: 69,336)

Introduction

I am pleased to present the Trustee's statement of governance, describing how the Trustee has governed the Defined Contribution ('DC') Money Purchase ('MP') Section of the Kingfisher Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme') during the year ended 31 March 2024 (the 'Scheme year'). In doing so, the Trustee provides the various statutory disclosures required by the Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations 1996 (as amended).

This statement covers the following areas:

- The investment strategy relating to the Scheme's default investment arrangement;
- Investment returns;
- Charges and transaction costs within the Scheme;
- Administration and the processing of core financial transactions;
- Value for members assessment;
- Trustee knowledge and understanding ('TKU');
- Information regarding governance and the Trustee' assessment of the Scheme against the Pensions Regulator's ("TPR's") general Code of Practice.

The MP Section of the Scheme has previously received external recognition, being awarded the Pensions Age 'Defined Contribution 2022 Scheme of the Year' award.

How we manage the Scheme

The Trustee Directors who served during the year are detailed in the Scheme's Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Trustee Board consists of ten Trustee Directors, known as Trustees, made up of five Employer appointed Directors, one independent Trustee Director and four Member Nominated Directors ('MNDs'). The MNDs serve for a period of four years unless their Trusteeship is terminated, or they resign or leave active membership before the end of their term. The MNDs are also able to stand for re-selection for a further one term of four years, making a total of eight years' maximum service.

The Trustee Board operates with four standing subcommittees to help fulfil its governance functions;

- Defined Benefit Investment Committee
- Audit, Accounts and Governance Committee
- Benefits Committee
- Defined Contribution Investment and Retirement Committee

Some of the activities completed during the year were as follows:

- The Trustee introduced a new Independent Financial Advice ('IFA') service through L&G to help further support members during their retirement planning. The service provides members with impartial advice and a personal recommendation based on their individual circumstances and needs.
- The Trustee Board held a number of discussions, and received training, on the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures ('TCFD') throughout the year. The Trustee considered the impact of climate change on both Final Salary and MP Sections of the Scheme. Further details about the Trustee's approach to climate change and the impact on the Scheme can be found in the Scheme's TCFD report. The Scheme's first TCFD report was published during the year end 31st March 2024 and is available on the Scheme's website here https://www.kingfisherpensions.com/knowledgecentre/scheme-documentation/
- The Trustee made a new retirement planning tool available to members. The tool helps enable members to plan more effectively, allowing the members to add other pension savings, including other Money Purchase pensions, Final Salary pensions, the State Pension, rental income or any other income. The modeller is also linked to the Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association ('PLSA') Retirement Living Standards, allowing members to compare their projected outcome to the different standards, which they can also personalise based on their own requirements.
- A range of pension benefits webinars were held during the year to help support and increase member pension education and engagement, including a Mid-Life MOT course offered to members via L&G and the Open University. The Scheme also promoted the second year of the industry wide 'Pay your pension some attention' campaign held in 2023.

1.The default arrangement

A Default Arrangement is provided for members who join the Scheme and do not choose an investment option for their contributions. Members can also positively choose to invest in the Default Arrangement. As at 31 March 2024, approximately 97% of members were invested in the Default Arrangement.

Setting an appropriate investment strategy

The Trustee is responsible for investment governance. This includes deciding on the aims, objectives and policies for the default arrangement (the 'Default Strategy') and ensuring that the Default Strategy is in the interests of members.

We have chosen the 'Lifestyle Cash Target' as the Default Arrangement. Details of the Default Strategy are recorded in a document called the Statement of Investment Principles ('SIP'). This document is available to members on the Trustee website or upon request. A copy of the SIP, including the part relating to the Default Strategy, is attached as Appendix 1 to this statement. The SIP was last reviewed on 14 December 2022.

The Trustee's aims and objectives for the Default Arrangement are in outline:

- The Default Arrangement should be suitable for the bulk of the Scheme's MP members and seeks a return of CPI +3% net of all charges over the long term.
- For younger members, investment should be in growth assets: higher-risk investments which are expected to produce significant real returns (after charges) over the long term.
- Over the ten years to selected retirement age ('SRA'), investments should be de-risked (relative to cash), with members gradually being switched out of growth assets such that by SRA they are wholly invested in cash/near-cash.

- Growth assets (e.g. stocks & shares) should be suitably diversified to reduce volatility.
- Charges should be substantially below the statutory charge cap of 0.75% per year and should ensure that members receive real value-for-money.

The Trustee believes that the Default Arrangement remains appropriate for the majority of members given the member demographics and the size of members' retirement accounts.

Reviewing the default arrangement

The Trustee's DC Investment and Retirement ('DCIR') Committee reviews the performance of the Default Arrangement on a quarterly basis with input from the Trustee's investment advisers. These quarterly reviews were carried out during the Scheme year. The DCIR Committee was satisfied that the long-term performance was consistent with the Trustee's aims and objectives for the Default Strategy, and that the funds forming the Default Arrangement continued to perform in line with their benchmarks.

At least once every three years, the Trustee conducts a comprehensive review of the Default Arrangement with the assistance of its external professional advisers. The last such review was completed in September 2022. For this purpose, the Trustee's advisers carried out an in-depth demographic analysis of the membership and supplied projections of member outcomes compared to the PLSA Retirement Living Standards. The Trustee considered the likely needs of members in retirement along with likely other sources of income, in particular the State pension, which for the majority of members will be their main source of income. Having regard to these factors, the Trustee approved the following changes at their meeting on 23 September 2022.

- 1. An increase in the equity allocation of the Default Strategy at younger ages
- 2. An increase in the length of the de-risking period from 5 to 10 years
- 3. A decrease in the length of time that cash is introduced from 5 to 3 years

The growth phase of the Default Arrangement was amended from 50% Passive Equity Fund and 50% Diversified Return Fund to 70% Passive Equity Fund and 30% Diversified Return Fund. The underlying funds are part of the Legal and General Investment Management ('LGIM') Future World Fund range. These funds aim to reduce the impact of climate change risk by prioritising companies which are less carbon-intensive or earn green revenues. The manager has discretion to reduce investment in certain companies which do not, in the manager's view, demonstrate adequate strategies and governance standards to transition to a low carbon economy.

The asset allocation of the Default Arrangement, during the growth phase, at 31st March 2024 was:

Asset Class	Percentage
Listed Equities	86.2%
Bonds	13.8%
Total	100%

In addition to global equities, the listed equities allocation includes exposures to global private equity, global real estate and global infrastructure. The exposure to these alternative asset classes is through listed instruments such as Real Estate Investment Trusts ('REITs').

The bonds allocation includes government bonds, inflation linked bonds, investment grade and sub-investment grade bonds.

At the members Selected Retirement Age the Default Arrangement is invested 100% in the Money Market Fund. The Money Market fund invests in cash, cash equivalent securities and high credit quality short term fixed income securities.

Other investment options

The Trustee also offers a range of white-labelled self-select funds covering the major asset classes.

The funds within the range are chosen having regard to members' likely needs, attitude to risk, and value-formoney. These funds are regularly monitored and reviewed by the Trustee.

2. <u>Investment returns</u>

Regulations introduced in 2021 require the Trustee to report on the net investment returns for the Scheme's default arrangement(s) and for each fund which Scheme members are, or have been able to select, and in which members have been invested during the Scheme year. The Trustee has considered the statutory guidance: 'Statutory Guidance: Disclose and Explain Asset Allocation Reporting and Performance-Based Fees and the Charge Cap' issued by the Department for Work and Pensions when preparing this section of the Chair's Statement.

The table below sets out annualised net fund performance to 31 March 2024 for the 1, 3 and 5 year periods for the lifestyle fund (for all ages up to the de-risking phase) and for the self-select fund range.

	1 year (%)	3 years (%)	5 years (%)
Lifestyle Fund (default arrangement)	15.3	5.9	7.6
Passive Equity Fund	18.1	8.3	10.0
Diversified Return Fund	9.1	2.4	4.3
Money Market Fund	5.1	2.4	1.6
Emerging Markets Fund	0.7	-6.2	1.6
Ethical Fund	16.3	6.5	11.5
Pre-Retirement Fund	3.5	-8.2	-3.4
Pre-Retirement Inflation Linked Fund	-0.9	-10.1	-4.9
Property Fund	0.3	1.7	1.4
Shariah Fund	32.2	14.8	17.2

Source: Legal and General

During the year ended 31 March 2024 the default arrangement experienced an investment return of 15.3%, equivalent to a rise of £153 for every £1,000 invested.

3. <u>Costs and Charges</u>

The Trustee is required to explain the charges (i.e. administration and investment management fees) and transaction costs (i.e. the costs of buying and selling investments) that are borne by members.

Where information about the member costs and charges is not available, the Trustee has to make this clear to you together with an explanation of what steps the Trustee is taking to obtain the missing information.

The charges and costs borne by members for the Scheme's services are:

Service	By members	Shared	By the Scheme
Investment management	~		
Investment transactions	✓		
Administration	~		
Governance			✓
Communications	~		
Retirement		~	

The level of charges and transaction costs applicable to the Scheme's Default Arrangement during the last Scheme year were:

	Ch	arge	Transaction costs		
Period to selected retirement age	% p.a.	£ per £1,000	% p.a.	£ per £1,000	
Growth phase – all ages up to ten years					
before selected retirement age.	0.41	£4.10	0.09	£0.90	
At selected retirement age	0.29	£2.90	0	£0.0	

The charges are well under the charge cap of 0.75%. Efforts are made to reduce charges and costs whenever possible.

The charges quoted in the above Statement are the funds' Total Expense Ratios ('TERs'). The TER consists of a fund's Annual Management Charge ('AMC') and Operating Costs and Expenses ('OCE'). OCEs include, for example, the fund's custodian costs. While the AMC is usually fixed, the OCE, and hence the TER, can vary slightly from day to day.

Transaction costs data has been supplied for the calendar year to 31 December 2023, being the best information available to the Trustee at the time of this statement's production.

Transaction costs

As explained on the previous page, transaction costs are costs incurred as a result of buying and selling investments. Members are not directly charged for buying and selling units in the funds, as they are 'swinging single' priced funds. The net asset value of a fund is valued at the mid-market price of the fund's underlying securities. Under a swinging single price regime, when the fund experiences net redemptions or net subscriptions the price may swing down or up to negate the impact of the expected transaction costs.

Self-select range

The level of charges for each self-select fund (including those used in the default arrangement) and the transaction costs over the period covered by this Statement are:

Fund	TER Charges	Total transaction costs
Lifestyle Fund (default arrangement)	0.41%	0.09%
Passive Equity fund	0.43%	0.12%
Diversified Return Fund	0.35%	0.04%
Money Market Fund	0.29%	0.00%
Emerging Markets Fund	1.11%	0.18%
Ethical Fund	0.93%	0.16%
Pre-Retirement Fund	0.28%	0.00%
Pre-Retirement Inflation Linked Fund	0.28%	0.05%
Property Fund	1.76%	0.00%
Shariah Fund	0.54%	0.00%

Source: Legal and General

•

There were no performance-based fees incurred by the default arrangement during the period covered by this statement.

The Total Expense Ratios (TERs) are as at 31 March 2024 and transaction cost information is based on information available for the 12 months to 31 December 2023 as supplied by L&G. This is the best information available to the Trustee at the time of this statement's production.

The total transaction cost figure includes explicit costs of transaction taxes and broker commissions, and the implicit costs of market spread and market impact after any anti-dilution offsets. Figures have been rounded to two decimal places. In accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority's Conduct of business sourcebook (COBS) 19.8, where aggregated transaction costs result in a negative value these costs have been adjusted by L&G to zero for reporting purposes.

Impact of costs and charges - illustration of charges and transaction costs

The Trustee has asked Hymans Robertson to illustrate the impact over time of the costs and charges borne by members. These illustrations show projected fund values in today's money before and after costs and charges for 3 typical members at different stages from joining the Scheme up to retirement. The tables in Appendix 2 to this Statement show these figures for:

- The Default Arrangement, as well as
- Funds from the Scheme's self-select fund range representing funds that have;
- the greatest number of members
 - the funds with highest and lowest levels of risk
 - the funds with the highest and lowest costs

Appendix 2 also provides important notes of the assumptions used in calculating these illustrations. The "before costs" figures represent the savings projection assuming an investment return with no deduction of member borne fees or transaction costs. The "after costs" figures represent the savings projection using the same assumed investment return but after deducting member borne fees and an allowance for transaction costs.

As an example, for a member who joined the default arrangement at age 18, paying the typical contribution rate of 10%, charges and costs (based on the figures for this Scheme year) would reduce their projected pot value, at retirement, in today's money from £198,648 to £173,599.

The Trustee has taken account of the relevant statutory guidance in preparing the illustrations.

4. Good value for members

Each year, with the help of their external professional advisers, the Trustee carries out an assessment of whether the charges and transaction costs for the Default Arrangement and other investment self-select options, which are borne in full or in part by members, represent good Value for Members. Value is not simply about low cost – the Trustee also considers the quality and scope of provision compared against similar schemes and available external benchmarks.

Approach

The Trustee adopted the following approach to assessing Value for Members for the last year:

- Services considered the investment, administration, communication services where members bear or share the costs;
- Outcomes weighted each service according to its likely impact on retirement outcomes for members;
- Comparison the cost and quality of each service were compared against similar schemes and available external comparisons;
- Rating each service was rated on the below basis.

Results for the Year ending 31 March 2024

The Scheme gave **EXCELLENT** Value for Members in the year ending 31 March 2024 for investment, communication, administration and retirement where members pay part or all of the costs.

The Trustee also assess all the services members use (not just those for which they pay part or all of the costs for). The Scheme gave **EXCELLENT** overall value for money in the year ending 31 March 2024.

The ratings, weightings and rationale for the assessment is set out below.

Rating	Definition
Excellent	The Trustee considers the Scheme offers excellent Value for Members providing services within a top 20% quality/cost range compared with other options or similar schemes in the market.
Good	The Trustee considers the Scheme offers good Value for Members providing services at better quality/cost compared with other typical options or similar schemes in the market.
Average	The Trustee considers the Scheme offers average Value for Members providing similar services at similar quality/cost compared with other typical options or similar schemes in the market.
Below average	The Trustee considers the Scheme offers below average Value for Members providing similar services at higher cost for similar quality compared with other typical options or similar schemes in the market.
Poor	The Trustee considers the Scheme offers poor Value for Members providing services within the bottom 20% quality/cost range compared with other options or similar schemes in the market.

The rationale for the rating of each service was in outline:

Service and weighting	Rating	Rationale
Investment 40%	GOOD	The Trustee notes that 96.9% of members are in the default lifestyle strategy. The default lifestyle strategy is under the 0.75% p.a. charge cap requirement. The strategy ranges from 0.29% p.a. to a maximum of 0.41% p.a. depending on where the member currently sits in the investment glidepath. This is marginally higher than the average charge of 0.28% p.a. in the DWP's 2020 survey for bundled schemes with over 1,000 members. However, the Scheme's strategy uses a multi-factor equity approach which is 50% currency hedged (rather than a simple market cap approach), which can be more expensive than the strategies employed by peer schemes. The Trustee also provides 9 funds for the membership to self-select from including property, emerging markets, ethical and Shariah funds. The Trustee considers that this is a suitable range of self-select funds and is a similar range to other peer schemes. The performance for most of the funds has been in line with their respective benchmarks. The Trustee and its DC investment adviser continues to monitor charges and receives quarterly detailed investment reports that consider performance relative to benchmarks. The Trustee is regularly updated by L&G and the Scheme's advisers on ESG developments and has introduced Tumelo to gain feedback from members on ESG matters.
Administration 20%	EXCELLENT	The Trustee receives regular reports on performance against the agreed service levels. These show that, over the 12-month period, L&G achieved 99.9%; above the target service levels of 95%. Core financial transactions have, generally, been processed promptly and accurately. Member complaints remain very low as a % of total membership, with 42 complaints in the year to 31 March 2024. L&G are rated AA- by Standard & Poor's, Aa3 by Moody's and AA- by Fitch which indicates that they are financially sound. Administration systems capabilities and controls in place to ensure regulatory compliance are effective and the Trustee considers L&G to have an experienced in-house administration and help-line team.
Communication 20%	EXCELLENT	The Scheme offers a website (including modellers) to members and provides a range of appropriate guides and other relevant information for members who are building their pension, to those nearing retirement. Relevant communications are sent to members at appropriate points in their pension's lifecycle to inform and support members' decision making. The Scheme is externally accredited with the PLSA's Pension Quality Mark, demonstrating that Scheme communications are clear and easy to understand. 'Online' engagement has increased in the last 12 months with the number of 'manage your account' member registrations increasing from 37.9% as at 31 March 2023 to 43.3% members as at 31 March 2024.
Governance 15%	EXCELLENT	The Trustee provides effective, independent oversight and management of the Scheme to ensure regulatory compliance, assess and enhance value, manage risks and ensure that members' interests are considered. The Trustee has had quarterly board meetings over the last 12 months and, in addition, operated four sub-committees to help fulfil its governance functions. The Board has 10 Trustee Directors with good gender diversity and access to a wide range of diverse professional skills and expertise including suitably qualified external advisors. The Chair of the Board is a professional independent trustee with significant pensions experience. A Trustee effectiveness review was carried out and the Board is confident that it has established and maintained procedures and controls to ensure the effectiveness and performance of the Scheme and its service

		providers. The Board have collectively, and individually, maintained and developed their knowledge over the year with dedicated training days. The Trustee Board is also a member of the Pensions Management Institute's Trustee Group.
Retirement 5%	EXCELLENT	The Trustee, through both L&G and Hargreaves Lansdown, offers a good range of communications, including guides, to ensure members make informed decisions as they approach retirement. The Trustee signposts appropriate guidance services available to members and provides access to an Independent Financial Advice (IFA) service via L&G to support Money Purchase members who need individual advice with their retirement options, an additional IFA service is available via LV for members who may also have final salary pension benefits. The Trustee has also introduced a new feature within their targeted communications strategy through their 'lifepoint' letters to keep members informed about their retirement journey for members within 10 years of retirement. Members receive 'wake up' packs from age 50, and then every five years until they crystalise their benefits. The new lifepoint letters are issued ten years and four years before the member's selected retirement age. They have also improved their retirement modeller and provided webinars for members covering a range of topics including retirement planning and support. Members are also being appropriately signposted to Pension Wise and Money Helper.

5. Administration and core financial transactions

The Trustee is required to report to you about the processes and controls to ensure that "core financial transactions" are processed promptly and accurately. The law specifies that these include the following:

- investing contributions paid into the Scheme;
- transferring assets related to members into or out of the Scheme;
- transferring assets between different investments within the Scheme; and
- making payments from the Scheme to or on behalf of members.

The Trustee has put in place processes to adhere to these requirements as follows:

- Appointing a professional third-party administrator, Legal and General (L&G)
- Having in place service level agreements ('SLAs') with the administrator which cover the accuracy and timeliness of core financial transactions as explained in more detail in the bullet points below.

Day-to-day administration is managed through work management systems with built-in controls to ensure a high level of quality through checking processes. These are also subject to quality sampling.

Quality controls are reviewed at a monthly "Risk and Controls Committee", which is overseen by L&G's Workplace DC Pensions Senior Leadership team. All processes are documented and assigned to the owners within the appropriate business team.

L&G's workplace pensions business is also subject to regular independent internal auditing from the L&G Group Internal Audit department, which is independent of all business and operational functions in the L&G Group plc; it reports to the Group Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the control environment in mitigating the key risks of the group.

An in-depth annual administration update was held by the DC Investment and Retirement Committee during the period covered by this statement. The DC Investment and retirement Committee also visited the new L&G administration Centre in Cardiff in June 2024.

L&G reports to the Trustee on the Service Standards specified below, on a quarterly basis.

TASK DESCRIPTION	WORK ITEM	SERVICE DAYS
Create Member Record	joiner files	24 hours
Process submitted contribution file	contribution files	24 hours
Allocate contribution payment	cash allocation	24 hours
Make retirement payment	retirement payment	5 working days
Make lump sum payment	lump sum payment	5 working days
Make death payment	death payment	5 working days
Make ill health payment	ill health payment	5 working days
Make serious ill health payment	serious ill health payment	5 working days
Make divorce payment	divorce payment	5 working days
Allocate transfer payment to member	transfer payment	5 working days
account		
Make short service refund payment	short service refunds	5 working days
Surrender member account	surrender	5 working days
Apply bulk transfer payments	transfers in (bulk)	Agreed individually with Trustee
		on a case-by-case basis
Apply individual transfer payment	transfers in (individual)	5 working days
Switch current investments / Redirect future	investment management	24 hours
contribution investment	(switches)	

The administrator aims to complete at least 95% of its administration work and core financial transactions within these service levels. For the year to 31 March 2024, the percentage completed within SLA was 99.9%. The Trustee monitors the SLAs on a quarterly basis.

The reporting covers: volume completed in target, volume not completed in target, volume total,

SLA%, average days outside of SLA (for cases not completed in target).

The Trustee monitored core financial transactions and administration service levels during the year:

- Monitoring of the SLAs is conducted on a quarterly basis by the Trustee, via the DC Investment and Retirement and the Accounts, Audit & Governance Administration Sub-Committees and the in-house group pensions team. The Trustee's quarterly monitoring and reviews did not identify any material issues for the scheme year.
- The Scheme has an agreed payroll timetable and escalation process in place with Legal & General which provides a further structured control to monitoring contribution processing.
- The Scheme is compliant with The Pension Regulator's general Code of Practice on reporting late payment of contributions and with the relevant legislation.
- Maintaining close working links between the in-house group pension team and the administrator. SLAs are provided to the in-house group pension team on a monthly basis.
- Ensuring that detailed disaster recovery plans are in place with the administrator, other relevant third parties, and within the sponsoring employer.
- Preparing a Risk Register which outlines the risks to members and the Scheme, including those in relation to financial transactions, and considers the impact, likelihood, controls and mitigation steps for each risk. The Risk Register is subject to ongoing monitoring and review, by both the Trustee and the group pension team.
- A review of the Legal & General data accuracy reporting for the Scheme was completed.
- Appointing a registered Auditor to undertake an annual audit. The Scheme Auditor independently tests a sample of financial transactions for accuracy and timeliness as part of the annual audit process.
- Review of the Audit and Assurance Faculty (AAF) internal controls report of Legal and General, a report audited by independent auditors.

- Monthly cash reconciliations are performed by the Legal and General accounting operation team on all bank accounts. Reconciliations are documented, checked, and authorised by the team manager. The cut-off date for completion of reconciliation is the 15th working day of the month.
- For contributions, on the payroll cycle dates all contribution files must be submitted to Legal and General, by payrolls via My Scheme Updates ('MSU'). MSU contains validation requiring the scheme to exactly match the structure held on file by Legal & General's administration platform (FPF). This includes details of members who are leaver status. The submission file cannot be submitted by the employer until all fields have been validated. Daily, weekly and monthly reports are generated and issued by the Business Intelligence team providing details of exceptions.
- L&G provided a report on data quality produced with reference to the Record Keeping Guidance published by the Pensions Regulator. This concluded that common data was present for 99.99% of membership data as at 31 March 2024.

Overall, the Trustee is satisfied that during the year:

- Core financial transactions were processed accurately, promptly and efficiently; and
- There have been no material administration errors in relation to processing core financial transactions.

Security of Assets:

The Trustee periodically assesses the level of security of the assets, taking legal advice where appropriate. The latest review took place in December 2022 and the Trustee is satisfied with the level of protection available to members' assets and believes that risks to the security of assets are suitably controlled. The Trustee will continue to keep this position under review.

The security of assets is also addressed in the L&G AAF report reviewed by the Trustee. The Trustee also receives and reviews the L&G disaster recovery plan.

6. Trustee Knowledge and Understanding (TKU)

The law requires the Trustee Board to possess sufficient TKU to run the Scheme effectively, including knowledge and understanding of key scheme documents, pensions and trust law and funding and investment principles. The Trustee takes its training and development responsibilities seriously and keeps a record of the training completed by each member of the Trustee Board. This training record is reviewed annually by the group pensions team in conjunction with the Chair to identify any gaps in the knowledge and understanding across the Board as a whole.

The Trustee Directors have also appointed suitably qualified and experienced external professional advisers to complement their own knowledge and to ensure they have access to the required skills, and this allows the Trustee to work with its professional advisers to fill in any gaps.

As part of the Trustee's training, on appointment all Trustee Directors familiarise themselves, with support from the group pensions team, with the main documents and policies of the Scheme, including but not limited to:

- the Trust Deed and Rules of the Scheme.
- the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Trustee
- the Statement of Investment Principles; and
- the members' booklet.

New Trustee Directors complete an induction programme, which includes completing TPRs online trustee toolkit. The trustee toolkit is an online learning programme aimed at trustees of occupational pension schemes.

The trustee toolkit includes a series of online learning modules and downloadable resources developed to help trustees meet the minimum level of knowledge and understanding introduced in the Pensions Act 2004. New Trustee Directors must complete this within six months of their appointment. All Trustees (excluding any newly appointed Trustee with less than six months' service) have completed the Pensions Regulator's toolkit, including the modules "How a Defined Contribution scheme works" and "Investment in a Defined Contribution scheme".

Trustee Directors commit to completing their own personal development training, either at the relevant meetings or by personal study.

During the Scheme year, Trustee Directors were provided with pensions bulletins to assist them in keeping up to date with current matters, including relevant information about changes to pensions law and regulations. When particular matters of strategic importance are being discussed at the Committees or Board, TKU training is provided ahead of any decisions.

The Scheme has a plan in place to conduct Trustee training days during the year to address ongoing training appropriate to their duties. The effectiveness of these practices, and the training received, are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Trustee training days are organised throughout the year, involving internal and external professional speakers. The KPS is a hybrid scheme having both a legacy Defined Benefit and an active Defined Contribution section, therefore the TKU agenda's cover both benefit structures. The days are open to all Trustee Directors, potential future Trustee Directors, Company delegates and group pensions team members.

As mentioned above, this TKU training covers a wide range of both DB & DC topics and for 2023/24, included Trustee duties on:

Date	Topic and trainers
17.1.2024	Cyber Security - Paul McGlone and Harija Sheikh, Aon
17.1.2024	The Mansion House Reforms – Defined Benefit (DB), Defined Contribution (DC), Collective Defined
	Contribution (CDC) - Lisa Deas and Ross McNeill Hymans Robertson
17.1.2024	Illiquid Assets - Long Term Assets Fund ("LTAF") and how they can be used in Defined Contribution –
	Sam Cobley, LCP
12.10.2023	Longevity – Mark Sharkey, Hymans Robertson
12.10.2023	An interactive introduction to behavioural risks and groupthink – Zoë Burdo, LCP
6.07.2023	Macroeconomic update – Steven Bell, Columbia Threadneedle
6.07.2023	Legal & General – Stewardship and Environmental Social Governance (ESG) – Maria Ortino, LGIM
6.07.2023	Legal training focussing on death and incapacity benefits – Richard Evans, Mayer Brown International

Additionally, TCFD training was conducted at the Trustee Board meetings throughout the year. Training addressed a wide range of areas including how climate change relates and impacts global financial systems, as well as the evolving reporting requirements for pension schemes, and how climate risk could be considered within an integrated risk management framework. The Trustee published their first TCFD report in June 2023.

Where appropriate the training includes a cross reference to the appropriate provision in the Trust Deed.

All presentations used for these TKU days are stored in a TKU section of the online board packs service, for Trustee reference.

The Trustee Board is also a member of the Pensions Management Institute's Trustee Group and is able to demonstrate CPD accreditation on an annual basis. All Trustee Directors are required to demonstrate evidence of at least 15 hours of CPD annually to keep the accreditation. This can include attending seminars offered by the Schemes professional advisers and other Employee Benefit Consultants (EBC's).

Further Trustee training days are planned to be held during 2024/25.

Trustee skills, experience and diversity

The Trustee operates four sub-committees, in addition to the Board itself, to help fulfil its governance functions. The Trustee has a relatively large, gender and age diverse board with members bringing a range of relevant skills and experience. The Chair is an independent professional trustee.

Other Board members have substantial professional knowledge and expertise in a wide range of disciplines including finance, human resources, tax, audit, purchasing and store management.

The Trustee regularly considers the diversity of the Board in relation to core characteristics such as gender, age and ethnicity as well as the mix of skills, experience and cognitive diversity. Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Trustee, where it is in their gift, seek to recruit new trustees who enhance the diversity of the Board and its overall effectiveness.

All board members have the requisite trustee knowledge and understanding as described above. Additionally, the Board is supported by a dedicated secretariat of pensions professionals with extensive experience, and by leading external professional advisers. On the basis of these factors, The Trustee is satisfied that the Board is composed of 'fit & proper' persons and able to properly exercise its Trustee functions.

During the Scheme year a Trustee Effectiveness review was completed. The review was facilitated by Hymans Robertson. The results were reviewed by the Trustee Board and there were no areas of concern. Another review is planned for 2024/25.

Taking into account the knowledge and experience of the Trustee Directors, combined with the specialist advice received from the appointed professional advisors, the Trustee Directors believe they are well placed to exercise their functions as Trustee Directors of the Scheme properly and effectively.

7. Trustee Statement of MP Governance

The Trustee undertakes ongoing assessments of the Scheme against The Pension Regulator's Code of Practice and related guidance and has implemented a structured plan for governance in this respect.

The Trustee considers that the systems, processes and controls across key governance functions are consistent with those set out in The Pensions Regulator's Code of Practice.

Rachel Croft

ITS Limited, represented by Rachel Croft, Chairperson On behalf of the Trustee

9 August 2024

Appendix I: Statement of investment principles GENERAL

Introduction

- This is the statement of investment principles (SIP) for the Kingfisher Pension Scheme (the Scheme). The SIP is designed to meet the requirements of section 35 of the Pensions Act 1995 (the Act) and the Occupational Pension Schemes (Investment) Regulations 2006 (the Regulations). Except where the express provisions of the SIP or the context require otherwise, terms used in the SIP have the meanings which apply for the purpose of the Act and Regulations. References to Paragraphs are to paragraphs of the SIP.
- The SIP has been prepared by the Scheme's trustee (the Trustee) after consulting the Scheme's employers and considering written advice from a suitably-qualified adviser, in so far as Regulation 2(2) requires.
- 3. The Scheme has defined benefit (DB) and defined contribution (DC) parts. The DB part consists of the Scheme's final salary section (KPS-FS) excluding DC AVC funds. The DC part consists of the money purchase section (KPS-MP) and AVC funds as just mentioned. In the SIP the DB and DC parts are dealt with separately.
- 4. The SIP includes both the statement of investment principles for the Scheme generally, in accordance with Regulation 2, and (in Paragraphs 16-22) the statement of investment principles for the default arrangement under KPS-MP (the **Default Arrangement**), in accordance with Regulation 2A.

Governance and compliance (Regulation 2(3)(a))

- 5. The Trustee has ultimate power and responsibility as to investment policy, though the Trustee is required to consult the Scheme's employers in certain circumstances as described in Paragraph 7. The Trustee has delegated certain of its investment functions to two subcommittees: the DB Investment Committee and the DC Investment & Retirement Committee.
- 6. The Trustee will invest with a view to giving effect to the principles in the SIP, in accordance with section 36(5) of the Act. Before making any investment, the Trustee will obtain and consider proper advice on whether the investment is satisfactory, having regard to the SIP and the requirements of the Regulations as to suitability, in accordance with Regulation 36(3) of the Act. The Trustee will determine the intervals at which it will obtain proper advice as regards existing investments, and will obtain and consider such advice accordingly.
- 7. The Trustee will review, and if necessary revise, the SIP at least every three years and in any event without delay after any significant change in investment policy. Before revising the SIP, the trustee will consult the Scheme's employers and consider written advice from a suitably-qualified person, in so far as Regulation 2(2) requires.

8. The Trustee will review the default strategy and the performance of the Default Arrangement at least every three years, and in any case without delay after any significant change in relevant investment policy or in the demographic profile of relevant members. The Trustee will in particular review the extent to which investment returns under the Default Arrangement (after deduction of charges) are consistent with the Trustee's aims and objectives in respect of the Default Arrangement. The Trustee will if necessary revise the SIP after any review.

Investment beliefs

- 9. The Trustee has the following general beliefs which will guide its investment decisions:
 - (a) DB liabilities: A sound understanding of the Scheme's DB liabilities is necessary in order to make appropriate DB investment decisions.
 - (b) Asset allocation: Asset allocation is a key decision as regards investment, with significant implications for long-term returns.
 - (c) Investment risk: Long-term returns on growth (or return-seeking) assets (e.g. equities) are likely to be higher than those on matching assets (e.g. bonds), but also more volatile. It is necessary to take a certain level of investment risk in order to generate adequate returns (i.e. adequate in order for the DB funding target to be affordable for employers and in order for DC benefits to meet members' expectations at retirement). Appropriate tools should be used to monitor and measure risk. Investment decisions should be made with regard to an agreed risk budget. The Trustee's focus should be on taking intended risks which it believes will be rewarded. Unintended, unrewarded risks should be hedged against in so far as practicable and cost-effective.
 - (d) **Diversification**: Diversification of investments is likely to reduce the level of risk inherent in the overall investment strategy.
 - (e) Passive versus active management: Passive investment management is likely to provide the best returns net of charges in many asset classes, particularly developed equity markets. However, active management can sometimes add value. As to active management, a specialist approach (focussing on a particular asset class) is more likely to add value than a balanced approach. The Trustee is satisfied that it has the resources needed in order to put in place and monitor a specialist management structure.
 - (f) Fees: Appropriate fee rates and structures will depend on the nature of the investment and on the terms commercially available but may sometimes include a performance-related element.
 - (g) Responsible ownership: Investee companies should be run in a responsible way, with due regard to environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues, because in the long term this is likely to contribute to the companies' financial success.

Fund managers

- 10. Having regard to the requirements of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the Trustee delegates day-to-day investment decisions to authorised fund managers. The DB and DC Investment Committees appoint, review and remove fund managers, with appropriate support from the Trustee's investment advisers and Kingfisher's group pensions department.
- 11. The criteria considered when appointing or removing fund managers include the following:
 - (a) Business: evidence of clear strategic direction; supportive ownership from a parent committed to fund management.
 - (b) People: high-calibre, experienced professionals; relatively low turnover; clear commitment to fund management culture; strong recruitment and training process.
 - (c) Process: effective approach to accessing/interpreting research; robust, repeatable investment process; process consistent with stated philosophy. The Trustee expects its fund managers, where appropriate, to have integrated ESG factors as part of their investment analysis and decision-making process,
 - (d) Performance: variability within acceptable range relative to fund manager's style.
- 12. The DB & DC Investment Committees monitor fund managers' performance against the applicable benchmarks, using the services of an independent performance measurement company. In addition, the Committees regularly meet with fund managers and review managers' capabilities as against the criteria in Paragraph 11.

DB INVESTMENT

Background

- 13. The Scheme is subject to the statutory funding objective (SFO) under the Pensions Act 2004, whereby the Scheme is required to have sufficient and appropriate assets to meet the expected cost of providing members' past service benefits (the Technical Provisions). As at the effective date of the 31 March 2022 valuation, the Scheme was fully-funded on the SFO basis.
- 14. Additionally, the Trustee and the employers have agreed a secondary funding objective (2FO) for the Scheme, which is to reach full-funding on a "gilts flat" basis by 2030. The Trustee is seeking to achieve and maintain the 2FO through a combination of investment returns and employer contributions, if required.

DB investment policies (Regulation 2(3)(b), (c) and (d))

- 15. The Trustee has the following policies as regards DB investment:
 - (a) Kinds of investment, and the balance between them: Having regard to the funding objectives described above, the Trustee's investment strategy is as follows:
 - The bulk of the DB funds (as at 31 March 2022, 88%) will be invested in assets which are intended broadly to match the DB liabilities, including gilts, corporate bonds, swaps, buy-in policies. In addition, the Trustee will seek to hedge approximately 96% of both the interest rate risk and the inflation risk via a suitable hedging portfolio.
 - A small proportion of DB funds (as at 31 March 2022, 12%) will be invested in growth assets, including equities and alternative assets such as private equity, property and commodities, with a view to achieving the 2FO.
 - The Trustee invests in a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) which provides a regular income stream to the Scheme. The SPV provides recourse for the Scheme to the underlying property assets in the event of Kingfisher plc's insolvency.
 - The portfolio will be gradually de-risked over the period to 2030 such that by then the portfolio will be invested entirely in matching assets. The timing and magnitude of switches from growth to matching assets will be determined by the Trustee, in consultation with the employers, with a view to ensuring cost-efficiency.

The Trustee is satisfied that this strategy will ensure that assets held to cover the Technical Provisions are invested in a manner appropriate to the nature and duration of the benefits payable, in accordance with Regulation 4(4). In implementing the strategy, the Trustee will have due regard to the requirements of Regulation 4(3), (5), (6) and (7) as to diversification, investment in unlisted assets, and the security, quality, liquidity and profitability of the portfolio as a whole.

In accordance with Regulation 4(8), the Trustee will invest in derivatives only to reduce risk (either as part of the strategic asset allocation or on a tactical basis, e.g. to cover exposed positions) or to facilitate efficient portfolio management. Derivatives will not be used to for speculative purposes or to "gear up" returns.

- (b) **Risks, including measurement and management**: The Trustee considers the key risk as regards the DB investments to be as follows:
 - (i) Mismatch risk The risk that the assets fail to keep pace with the liabilities. Mismatch risk can include inflation, interest rate and longevity risks. The risk is measured by regular assessment of the potential development of the liabilities relative to the current and target mixes of investments. The risk is managed via a liability-driven investment programme whereby, among other things, the Trustee invests substantially in assets which are intended broadly to match the liabilities, and hedges against residual inflation and interest rate risk (see (a) above)
 - (ii) Collateral Adequacy risk The Scheme is invested in leveraged Liability Driven Investment ("LDI") arrangements to provide protection against adverse changes in interest rates and inflation expectations. The LDI manager may from time to time call for additional cash to be paid to the LDI portfolio in order to support a given level of leverage. Collateral adequacy risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to post additional cash to the LDI portfolio within the required timeframe. A potential consequence of this risk is that the Scheme's interest rate and inflation hedging could be reduced, and that the Scheme's funding level could suffer as a result. In order to manage this risk, the Trustee has a collateral monitoring and collateral waterfall framework in place to ensure that the Scheme has a reasonable liquidity buffer should cash need to be posted to the LDI manager at short notice.
 - (iii) Concentration risk The risk that undue concentration in a single asset or asset class leaves the Scheme exposed should that asset or asset class fall in value. This risk is addressed by investing across a broad range of asset classes as described in (a) above. Within each asset class further diversifying conditions are imposed on fund managers, e.g. limits on maximum holdings in any one asset. No investment is permitted in Kingfisher plc shares or bonds, other than indirectly through pooled funds.
 - (iv) Manager risk The risk that underperformance by a fund manager will adversely affect overall investment returns. To manage this risk, the Trustee will, where appropriate, allocate assets in a given asset class to two or more different fund managers, who may in turn employ different investment approaches (e.g. active versus passive). The Trustee sets clear objectives for fund managers and lays down guidelines and restrictions as to achieving those objectives. The Trustee monitors both the performance of fund managers against their objectives and the performance of DB investments as a whole.

- (v) Risks as to derivatives:
 - **Counterparty risk** The risk of counterparty failure. This risk is managed through conditions as to the selection of counterparties and through the posting of collateral (including suitable margin).
 - Basis risk The risk of a mismatch between the Trustee's obligations under the payable leg of a derivative and the relevant backing assets. The Trustee manages this risk via its investment policy and via delegation to suitably capable fund managers.
 - Liability risk The risk of a divergence between the performance of a derivative and the relevant DB liabilities, e.g. because of an unanticipated change in the basis on which those liabilities are valued. The Trustee manages this risk by constructing its derivative strategy based on a best estimate of future DB cashflows.
- (vi) Currency risk The risk that, where investments are overseas, returns are adversely affected by currency movements. This risk is addressed by hedging an appropriate proportion of the currency exposure (having regard to the extent to which hedging can be achieved efficiently).
- (vii) Custodian risk The risk that the custodian of the Scheme's assets (or an overseas sub-custodian) misplaces assets. The Trustee manages this via a robust process for the appointment and monitoring of the custodian, and by imposing suitable terms as to the use of subcustodians.
- (viii) Liquidity risk The risk that, due to a shortage of cash, the Trustee is unable to pay benefits when due or is forced to make an unintended asset sale. The Trustee manages this risk by forecasting cashflows and ensuring that a suitable proportion of DB funds are invested in readilyrealisable assets.
- (ix) Environmental Social and Governance Issues Risk of the extent to which ESG factors including climate change are not appropriately reflected in asset prices and / or not considered in investment decision making processes leading to underperformance relative to targets. The Trustee considers this risk by taking advice from their investment adviser and discussing ESG integration with investment managers.
- (c) **Expected returns**: The assets, taken as a whole, are expected to generate returns over the long term that modestly exceed gilts. Target returns for particular portfolios will be agreed with the relevant fund managers.
- (d) Realisation of investments: Arrangements are in place to minimise the risk that the Trustee will need to realise investments unexpectedly – see (b)(vii) above. Disposals of individual holdings within a portfolio will normally be a matter for the relevant fund manager. The Trustee does however pro-actively seek and review information as to transaction costs.

- (e) Financially-material considerations: The Trustee believes that ESG issues may have a material impact on the performance of investments over the appropriate time horizon, which the Trustee takes to be the period to 2030 (the target date for the 2FO). The Trustee has regard to ESG considerations when investing, in so far as consistent with the Trustee's duties as regards seeking returns and mitigating risk. In particular, the Trustee takes account of climaterelated risks and opportunities in the management of the DB global equity portfolio, the Trustee's view being that climate change and the expected transition to a low-carbon economy give rise to long-term financial risks for the Scheme and for member outcomes. The Trustee has implemented a "climate change tilt", i.e. it has more exposure to companies generating revenue from low-carbon opportunities, and less exposure to companies with higher carbon emissions and fossil fuel assets relative to their sector. The Trustee has also invested in a global renewable energy fund. The Trustee assesses the investment managers' approach to ESG as part of the investment manager selection process. Other than in this regard, it is left to fund managers to determine the extent to which ESG issues are taken into account when making investment decisions. The Trustee recognises that passive managers may be constrained by the need to track relevant indices, but nevertheless expects such managers to pursue a policy of engagement with investee companies (see below).
- (f) Non-financial matters: The Trustee recognises that some DB members may have strong views as to non-financial matters including ethical issues. However, the Trustee does not feel that there is any clear consensus as to nonfinancial matters across the Scheme membership. Against that background, the Trustee does not seek to take account of members' views as to non-financial matters when investing.
- (g) Voting and investor rights and engagement: The Trustee encourages fund managers to vote and exercise other investor rights, and to engage with investee companies and other relevant persons on relevant matters, with a view to furthering the Trustee's long-term financial interests and the policies described above. The fund managers decide whether and how to vote and engage on particular issues, referring back to the Trustee only where they deem an issue to be contentious and to warrant discussion by the Trustee. Stewardship information supplied by fund managers is reviewed and, where a review gives rise to a concern, the Trustee will consider how best to address that concern with the relevant manager.

The majority of the DB fund managers, including all managers investing in listed equities, are signatories to the UK Stewardship Code.

- (h) Arrangements with fund managers: The Trustee's policy as regards arrangements with any fund manager is as follows:
 - The Trustee will enter into a contract with the fund manager on terms which are appropriate having regard to the policies set out in this SIP, including terms as to investment objectives/benchmarks; constraints (e.g. concentration limits); financially-material considerations;

remuneration; performance measurement and reporting; and termination of the arrangement.

- (ii) The Trustee will ensure that the policies set out in this SIP (so far as relevant) are clearly communicated to the fund manager.
- (iii) The Trustee will proactively monitor and liaise with the fund manager on a regular basis.
- (iv) If the Trustee identifies that the fund manager is failing to meet the Trustee's objectives, the Trustee will engage with the manager with a view to understanding and (as far as possible) addressing the failure.
- (v) If there is a serious or persistent failure to meet the Trustee's objectives, the Trustee will formally review the fund manager's appointment and (depending on the outcome of the review) may terminate the arrangement.
- (vi) Specifically:
 - Incentives to align decisions with Trustee's policies: Where appropriate, fund managers may be given a direct incentive to achieve the target investment return agreed with the Trustee, via a suitable performance fee. In all cases fund managers have an indirect incentive to align strategy and decisions with the Trustee's policies, given the process of communication, monitoring, liaison, engagement and review mentioned above.
 - Incentives to think long-term and to engage: Fund managers have an indirect incentive to make decisions based on medium- to longterm financial and non-financial performance and to engage with investee companies in order to improve performance, given the process of communication, monitoring, liaison, engagement and review mentioned above. Where performance fees apply, the terms are set with a view to ensuring that short-term performance is not given undue priority; see below.
 - Performance and remuneration evaluation: Fund managers' performance and remuneration are evaluated in the round and over predetermined medium- to long-term periods. Investment returns are a factor, but they are not assessed on a purely short-term basis. Performance as against the Trustee's other objectives and policies is taken into account. Where the arrangements with a fund manager include a performance fee, the terms will be set with a view to ensuring that the manager does not give undue priority to short-term investment returns, to the detriment of long-term returns or the Trustee's other objectives and policies.
 - Portfolio turnover: The Trustee recognises that in addition to annual management charges and performance fees, there are other costs incurred by asset managers that can increase the overall cost incurred by their investments (such as transition costs from portfolio turnover). The Trustee ascertains fund managers' policies as regards

portfolio turnover and monitors turnover costs regularly. In general, the Trustee does not go further and formally monitor or specify targets as to turnover or associated costs, because the Trustee recognises that these costs are a necessary cost to generate returns and that the level of these costs varies by asset class and manager. However, where a fund manager is underperforming, the Trustee may scrutinise portfolio turnover and associated costs as part of its review.

• **Duration**: Arrangements with fund managers are generally openended but with the Trustee having the right to terminate at any time.

DC INVESTMENT, INCLUDING THE DEFAULT ARRANGEMENT

Background

- 16. In accordance with the Pensions Act 2008 and the Scheme's governing rules, the Trustee has put in place:
 - a Default Arrangement in which KPS-MP members' (including automatically enrolled employees) retirement accounts are by default invested; and
 - a range of other 'white-labelled' DC investment options from which members may choose (Self-Select Options).
- 17. The DC investments consist primarily of holdings in unitised funds (Funds) offered by insurance companies. The Funds invest in turn (via their fund managers), but the underlying assets of the Funds are not owned by the Trustee.
- 18. The Trustee has chosen a "Lifestyle Cash Target" as the Default Arrangement. The Trustee's investments under the arrangement consist of units in Funds offered by Legal & General Assurance Society Limited (L&G), described further in Paragraph 21(a). The Self-Select Options consist primarily of Funds offered by L&G, although some other legacy investments are retained for certain longstanding members.
- 19. The Default Arrangement and the Self-Select Options are regularly monitored and reviewed by the Trustee and may be changed by the Trustee at any time.

Aims and objectives for the Default Arrangement (Regulation 2A(1)(a))

- 20. The Trustee's aims and objectives for the Default Arrangement are as follows:
 - The Default Arrangement should be suitable for the bulk of KPS-MP members and seeks a return of CPI +3% net of all charges over the long term.
 - For younger members, investment should be in growth assets: higher-risk investments which are expected to produce significant real returns (after charges) over the long term.
 - Over the ten years to selected retirement age (SRA), investments should be derisked, with members gradually being switched out of growth assets such that by SRA they are wholly invested in cash/near-cash.
 - · Growth assets should be suitably diversified to reduce volatility.
 - Charges should be substantially below the statutory charge cap of 0.75% per year and should ensure that members receive real value-for-money.

DC investment policies (Regulations 2(3), 2A(1)(b), (d))

- 21. The Trustee has the following policies as regards DC investments including the Default Arrangement:
 - (a) Kinds of investment, and the balance between them:
 - **Default Arrangement**: During the growth phase investment is split between the Passive Equity Fund i.e. the L&G Future World Fund and the

Diversified Return Fund i.e. the L&G Future World Multi Asset Fund. The Passive Equity Fund is invested in global equities, including an ESG climate tilt with 50% of the overseas currency exposure hedged. The Multi-Asset Fund is invested in a range of global assets including equities, government and corporate bonds, real estate, infrastructure and private equity, while reflecting significant ESG issues into the fund's investment strategy; the balance as between the different asset classes is determined by Legal & General. In the de-risking phase investment is gradually switched (as outlined above) to the Money Market Fund. The Money Market Fund is invested in money market instruments and fixed deposits.

- Self-Select Options: The Trustee's policy is to offer a simple range of white-labelled Funds covering the major asset classes, with the underlying investments of each Fund being suitably diversified within the relevant asset class. The Funds within the range are chosen having regard to (among other thing) members' likely needs, attitude to risk, and value-for-money.
- (b) Risks, including measurement and management: The Trustee considers the key risks to be as follows:
 - Inflation risk The risk that the investment returns over members' working lives are inadequate relative to inflation.
 - Default Arrangement: Inflation risk is addressed by investing over the bulk of members' working lives in Funds which hold growth assets which are expected to produce positive real returns, and by monitoring the performance of those Funds as against an inflationbased target.
 - Self-Select Options: Inflation risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering Funds which hold growth assets and are expected to produce positive real returns.
 - (ii) Shortfall risk (opportunity cost) The risk that members end up with insufficient funds at retirement with which to secure a reasonable income.
 - Default Arrangement: Shortfall risk is addressed by investing over the bulk of members' working lives in Funds which hold growth assets and by monitoring the performance of those Funds, and by derisking over the ten years to SRA so as to limit members' exposure to adverse market movements. See (v) below as regards the shortfall risk which arises from de-risking to cash for members who take benefits via annuity purchase or drawdown.
 - Self-Select Options: Shortfall risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering Funds which hold growth assets and Funds which enable members to de-risk in the run-up to retirement.
 - (iii) Currency risk The risk that, where Funds' underlying investments are overseas, returns are adversely affected by currency movements.

- Default Arrangement: Currency risk is addressed in respect of the Passive Equity Fund by hedging of 50% of the currency exposure as described above.
- Self-Select Options: Currency risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering the Passive Equity Fund for members who wish to invest in global equities with some hedging of the currency exposure.
- (iv) Concentration risk The risk that undue concentration in a single asset or asset class leaves members exposed should that asset or asset class fall in value.
 - Default Arrangement: Concentration risk is addressed by investing, during the growth phase, across two Funds with a broad range of underlying assets as described above.
 - Self-Select Options: Concentration risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering Funds across a range of different asset classes, with the underlying assets of each Fund being diversified within the relevant asset class.
- (v) Benefit conversion risk The risk that relative market movements in the run-up to retirement lead to a substantial reduction in the benefits secured.
 - Default Arrangement: Benefit conversion risk is addressed via derisking during the ten years prior to SRA. The Trustee recognises that significant risk remains for members who retire before SRA and/or who take benefits via an annuity or drawdown rather than in cash. This residual risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering suitable alternative Self-Select Options (see below).
 - Self-Select Options: Benefit conversion risk is addressed by informing members of the risk and by offering Funds which members may use to mitigate it, including the Money Market Fund, the Pre-Retirement Fund and Pre-Retirement Inflation Linked Fund.
- (vi) Manager risk The risk that underperformance by a fund manager will adversely affect a member's overall investment returns.
 - Default Arrangement: Manager risk is addressed by investing during the growth phase partly in a Fund which is passively managed, and by regularly monitoring the performance and capabilities of the fund managers of the actively managed Funds.
 - Self-Select Options: Manager risk is addressed by offering several Funds which are passively managed, and by regularly monitoring the performance and capabilities of the fund managers of the actively managed Funds.
- (vii) Environmental Social and Governance Issues Risk of the extent to which ESG factors including climate change are not appropriately

reflected in asset prices and / or not considered in investment decision making processes leading to underperformance relative to targets. The Trustee considers this risk by taking advice from their investment adviser and discussing ESG integration with investment managers.

(c) Expected returns:

• **Default Arrangement**: The strategy's objective is to generate returns over the long term of CPI + 3% per annum after all charges. This is not guaranteed and there may be periods of underperformance against this return target. The Trustee takes investment advice when reviewing the default strategy to help determine whether the return target remains appropriate.

The growth phase invests in asset classes that are expected to grow in value relative to inflation more than other investments. Cash/near-cash is expected to generate returns in accordance with prevailing market interest rates, though there is a small chance that returns will be negative.

- Self-Select Options: For each Fund a target return, appropriate to the underlying assets, is agreed and monitored.
- (d) Realisation of investments and liquidity: The Trustee's holdings in Funds will be sold as and when necessary for the purpose of investment switches, benefit payments or transfers-out. The Trustee believes that for members it is important that holdings are suitably liquid, so that any decision which members make to switch investments, take benefits or transfer can be implemented without delay. Accordingly, the Trustee's policy is not to invest in Funds which are illiquid or under which a material proportion of the underlying assets are illiquid, and the Trustee does not currently have plans to invest in any such Funds in the future. The Diversified Return Fund, which comprises part of the Default Arrangement during the growth phase, has some exposure to illiquid asset classes (e.g. property and infrastructure) for reasons of diversification, but this exposure is achieved through liquid instruments. Accordingly, the Trustee expects that all holdings will be readily realisable in all normal market conditions. Realisation of the underlying investments of the Funds is a matter for their fund managers. The Trustee does however pro-actively seek and review information as to transaction costs.
- (e) Financially-material considerations: The Trustee believes that ESG issues may have a material impact on the performance of investments over the appropriate time horizon, which the Trustee takes to be members' working lives. The Trustee has regard to ESG considerations when investing, in so far as consistent with the Trustee's duties as regards seeking returns and mitigating risk. In particular, the Trustee takes account of climate-related risks and opportunities, the Trustee's view being that climate change and the expected transition to a low-carbon economy give rise to long-term financial risks for member outcomes. The Trustee selected the L&G Future World Fund as the underlying fund of the Passive Equity Fund in part to mitigate the financially material risks associated with climate change. The Fund has a "climate change tilt", i.e. it has more exposure to companies generating revenue from low-carbon opportunities, and less exposure to companies with higher carbon emissions and

fossil fuel assets relative to their sector. The Trustee also selected the L&G Future World Multi-Asset Fund as the underlying fund of the Diversified Return Fund which reflects significant ESG considerations into the fund's investment strategy. The Trustee assesses the investment managers' approach to ESG as part of the investment manager selection process. Other than in this regard, it is left to the fund managers to determine the extent to which ESG issues are taken into account when making decisions as to the underlying investments. The Trustee recognises that passive managers may be constrained by the need to track relevant indices, but nevertheless expects such managers to pursue a policy of engagement with investee companies (see below).

- (f) Non-financial matters: The Trustee recognises that some DC members may have strong views as to non-financial matters including ethical issues. However, the Trustee does not feel that there is any clear consensus as to nonfinancial matters across the Scheme membership. Against that background, the Trustee has determined that the Self-Select Options should include the Ethical Fund and the Shariah Fund, but does not otherwise take account of members' views on non-financial matters when investing.
- (g) Voting and investor rights and engagement: Voting and other rights attaching to the investments of the Funds are exercisable by the fund managers. It is left to the fund managers to determine whether and how to exercise those rights. The Trustee does however monitor and engage with the fund managers. L&G provide corporate governance and responsible investment presentations to the Trustee, outlining their stewardship approach and reporting on their engagement and voting activities. Stewardship information supplied by L&G/fund managers is reviewed and, where a review gives rise to a concern, the Trustee will consider how best to address that concern with L&G/the relevant manager.

The fund managers of all Funds are signatories to the UK Stewardship Code.

- (h) Arrangements with fund managers: As mentioned in Paragraphs 16 to 18, DC investments are made via insurance companies, principally L&G. Whilst the Trustee selects the underlying Funds which are made available to members, the fund managers of those Funds are appointed by the insurer. Consequently the Trustee has no direct arrangements with fund managers. However, in the interests of transparency, the Trustee's policy as regards analogous matters is as follows:
 - (i) The Trustee will enter into a contract with the insurer on terms which are appropriate having regard to the policies set out in this SIP, including terms as fees; performance measurement and reporting; and termination of the arrangement.
 - (ii) When choosing Funds, the Trustee will so far as practicable ensure that the applicable terms are likewise appropriate, including the terms as to investment objectives/benchmarks; constraints (e.g. concentration limits); financially-material considerations; non-financial matters; and fees.

- (iii) The Trustee will proactively monitor Funds and liaise with the insurer and/or fund managers from time to time.
- (iv) If the Trustee identifies that a Fund is failing to meet the Trustee's objectives, the Trustee will engage with the insurer and/or fund manager with a view to understanding and (as far as possible) addressing the failure.
- (v) If there is a serious or persistent failure to meet the Trustee's objectives, the Trustee will formally review the Fund's selection and (depending on the outcome of the review) may close or withdraw the Fund or terminate the arrangement with the insurer.
- (vi) Specifically:
 - Incentives to align decisions with Trustee's policies; incentives to think long-term and to engage: The Trustee ensures that the terms of Funds are appropriate having regard to the Trustee's policies, as mentioned above. The Trustee considers that the process of monitoring, liaison, engagement and review mentioned above provides L&G (and, to some extent, indirectly, fund managers) with an incentive to align strategy and decisions with the Trustee's policies, to make decisions based on medium- to long-term financial and non-financial performance, and to engage with investee companies in order to improve performance. As mentioned above, the Trustee has no direct arrangements with fund managers. That being the case, the Trustee believes that it would not be practicable to directly incentivise fund managers as regards the matters discussed in this paragraph.
 - Performance and remuneration evaluation: Fund performance and charges are evaluated in the round and over predetermined medium- to long-term periods. Investment returns are a factor but they are not assessed on a purely short-term basis. Performance as against the Trustee's other objectives and policies is taken into account. There are no performance fees in relation to the Funds.
 - Portfolio turnover: The Trustee may have regard to portfolio turnover when selecting Funds. In addition, the Trustee receives and assesses data from insurers as regards Funds' transaction costs to that extent the Trustee monitors turnover costs. In general, the Trustee does not go further and formally monitor or specify targets as to turnover or associated costs because, in the Trustee's view, such further monitoring and target-setting would not add significant value. However, where a fund manager is underperforming, the Trustee may scrutinise portfolio turnover and associated costs as part of its review.
 - **Duration**: Arrangements with insurers are generally open-ended but with the Trustee having the right to terminate at any time. Likewise the Trustee is generally able to close or withdraw underlying Funds at any time.

Ensuring the default strategy is in members' interests (Regulation 2A(1)(c))

22. The Trustee considers that KPS-MP members will typically be relatively risk-averse and on retirement will take their benefits in cash form. The Trustee is conscious of the significant impact which charges and transaction costs can have, over the long term, on the benefits which members receive. The Trustee is also conscious that members may want to take or transfer their benefits at short notice and without delay. The Trustee's default strategy described in Paragraphs 20 and 21 above is intended to serve the best interests of members by striking an appropriate balance, during the growth phase, as between maximising returns while reducing volatility; by de-risking in the run-up to retirement so as to avoid conversion risk; by ensuring that holdings are suitably liquid; and by delivering real value for members.

14 December 2022

Appendix II: Tables illustrating the impact of charges and costs

The following tables show the potential impact of the costs and charges borne by average members. This is shown as projected values in today's money at several times up to retirement for a selection of funds.

Representative Member 1: Active Member, age 42, with a pension pot size of £21,600, on a salary of £24,000 p.a., making 10% contributions (5% employee; 5% employer) and retiring at age 68 in line with the State Pension Age.

For the default arrangement:

Years to retirement	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges are taken (today's £)
26	£21,600	£21,600
25	£24,615	£24,506
20	£41,019	£40,096
15	£59,878	£57,608
10	£81,560	£77,278
5	£105,516	£98,541
3	£114,935	£106,796
1	£122,653	£113,499
0	£125,144	£115,630

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by Legal & General (L&G) and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

For a selection of the self-select funds:

ent		ed Return	Money Market Fund		Emerging Markets		Pre-Retirement Fund		Property Fund	
ш.	Fu	nd			Fu	nd				
retirement	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After
	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and	costs and
to	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges
Years	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's
Ye	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)
26	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600	£21,600
25	£24,304	£24,222	£23,859	£23,795	£24,970	£24,684	£24,748	£24,686	£24,748	£24,357
20	£38,429	£37,770	£34,992	£34,518	£44,176	£41,614	£42,177	£41,633	£42,177	£38,862
15	£53,618	£52,082	£45,856	£44,835	£67,984	£61,366	£62,792	£61,414	£62,792	£54,640
10	£69,952	£67,201	£56,457	£54,760	£97,497	£84,410	£87,176	£84,504	£87,176	£71,803
5	£87,516	£83,171	£66,803	£64,308	£134,084	£111,297	£116,016	£111,456	£116,016	£90,474
3	£94,906	£89,808	£70,871	£68,025	£151,066	£123,267	£128,978	£123,459	£128,978	£98,394
1	£102,515	£96,593	£74,899	£71,685	£169,572	£135,999	£142,841	£136,229	£142,841	£106,584
0	£106,403	£100,041	£76,898	£73,494	£179,438	£142,665	£150,129	£142,916	£150,129	£110,784

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by L&G and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

The assumptions used in these calculations are detailed below.

Representative Member 2: Deferred Member, age 39, with a pension pot size of £6,100, making 0% contributions and retiring at age 68 in line with the State Pension Age.

For the default arrangement:

Years to retirement	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges are taken (today's £)
29	£6,100	£6,100
25	£6,820	£6,695
20	£7,841	£7,520
15	£9,015	£8,447
10	£10,364	£9,488
5	£11,803	£10,565
3	£12,315	£10,933
1	£12,629	£11,131
0	£12,642	£11,108

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by L&G and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

Tables illustrating the impact of charges and costs (continued)

	Diversifie	ed Return	Money	Market	Emergin	g Markets	Pre-Ret	irement	Proper	ty Fund
	Fu	nd	Fu	nd	Fu	und	Fu	nd		
	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After	Before	After
Years to	costs	costs	costs	costs	costs		costs	costs	costs	costs
retirement	and	and	and	and	and	costs and charges	and	and	and	and
	charges	charges	charges	charges	charges	(today's	charges	charges	charges	charges
	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's		(today's	(today's	(today's	(today's
	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)	£)
29	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100	£6,100
25	£6,465	£6,373	£5,982	£5,914	£7,244	£6,901	£6,977	£6,903	£6,977	£6,525
20	£6,952	£6,733	£5,837	£5,690	£8,980	£8,051	£8,252	£8,058	£8,252	£7,098
15	£7,476	£7,112	£5,696	£5,474	£11,132	£9,393	£9,761	£9,406	£9,761	£7,721
10	£8,039	£7,513	£5,559	£5,266	£13,800	£10,959	£11,545	£10,979	£11,545	£8,399
5	£8,645	£7,936	£5,425	£5,066	£17,107	£12,786	£13,655	£12,815	£13,655	£9,137
3	£8,900	£8,112	£5,372	£4,988	£18,642	£13,600	£14,604	£13,633	£14,604	£9,449
1	£9,162	£8,292	£5,319	£4,912	£20,315	£14,465	£15,618	£14,503	£15,618	£9,773
0	£9,296	£8,383	£5,293	£4,874	£21,206	£14,918	£16,151	£14,959	£16,151	£9,939

For a selection of the self-select funds:

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by L&G and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

The assumptions used in these calculations are detailed below.

Representative Member 3: Active Member who has just joined the scheme, age 18, on a salary of £20,000 p.a., making 10% contributions (5% employee; 5% employer) and retiring at age 68 in line with the State Pension Age.

For the default arrangement:

Years to retirement	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges are taken (today's £)
50	£0	£0
45	£10,599	£10,474
40	£22,785	£22,239
35	£36,795	£35,455
30	£52,902	£50,300
25	£71,420	£66,974
20	£92,711	£85,705
15	£117,188	£106,744
10	£145,330	£130,377
5	£176,034	£155,585
3	£187,705	£165,024
1	£196,480	£171,984
0	£198,648	£173,599

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by L&G and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

Tables illustrating the impact of charges and costs (continued)

Ye ars	Diversified Return Fund		Money Market Fund		Emerging Markets Fund		Pre-Retirement Fund		Property Fund	
to ret ire m en t	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges (today's £)	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges (today's £)	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges (today's £)	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges (today's £)	Before costs and charges (today's £)	After costs and charges (today's £)
50	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0	£0
45	£10,245	£10,153	£9,758	£9,689	£11,018	£10,679	£10,754	£10,682	£10,754	£10,305
40	£21,261	£20,878	£19,279	£19,010	£24,676	£23,138	£23,474	£23,150	£23,474	£21,514
35	£33,108	£32,208	£28,571	£27,977	£41,607	£37,675	£38,520	£37,703	£38,520	£33,708
30	£45,847	£44,176	£37,639	£36,604	£62,596	£54,634	£56,315	£54,691	£56,315	£46,973
25	£59,547	£56,818	£46,487	£44,904	£88,615	£74,421	£77,364	£74,520	£77,364	£61,402
20	£74,278	£70,173	£55,122	£52,888	£120,869	£97,506	£102,260	£97,666	£102,260	£77,099
15	£90,119	£84,280	£63,548	£60,570	£160,853	£124,440	£131,707	£124,683	£131,707	£94,173
10	£107,154	£99,182	£71,770	£67,960	£210,419	£155,864	£166,537	£156,218	£166,537	£112,747
5	£125,472	£114,924	£79,794	£75,070	£271,864	£192,526	£207,734	£193,029	£207,734	£132,952
3	£133,180	£121,467	£82,950	£77,838	£300,384	£208,849	£226,249	£209,422	£226,249	£141,523
1	£141,115	£128,154	£86,074	£80,563	£331,464	£226,210	£246,051	£226,862	£246,051	£150,387
0	£145,170	£131,553	£87,625	£81,910	£348,034	£235,300	£256,461	£235,996	£256,461	£154,932

For a selection of the self-select funds:

Source: Hymans Robertson based on data supplied by L&G and the Kingfisher Pensions Team.

The assumptions used in these calculations are detailed below.

Assumptions:

- The opening pension pot size of £21,600 for an active member and £6,100 for a deferred member, which was the average pension pot size for members on 31 March 2024.
- A contribution in current day terms 10% p.a. (5% employee and 5% employer), which was the most popular contribution choice for members in the Scheme as of 31 March 2024.
- The investment return assumed for each fund above is as follows:

Fund	SMPI Growth Rate % p.a. (supplied by L&G)		
Passive Equity Fund	6.0		
Diversified Return Fund	4.0		
Money Market Fund	2.0		
Emerging Markets Fund	7.0		
Pre-Retirement Fund	6.0		

- Inflation is assumed to be 2.5% per annum;
- The investment transaction costs, and total expense ratios assumed for each fund above are as follows:

Fund	Total Expense Ratio (TER) %	Fund Transaction Costs %	
Passive Equity Fund	0.43	0.11	
Diversified Return Fund	0.35	0.02	
Money Market Fund	0.29	0.00	
Emerging Markets Fund	1.11	0.18	
Pre-Retirement Fund	0.28	0.00	

• The assumptions as used in the Statutory Money Purchase Illustrations included with members' benefit statements have otherwise been used.

Tables illustrating the impact of charges and costs (continued)

Please note that these illustrated values:

- Use TER supplied for the year to 31 March 2024.
- Use average transaction costs supplied for the past 5 years to 31 December 2023 being the best information available to the Trustee at the time.
- For information purposes only and using the same effective date of 31 December 2023, the 12-month transaction costs for all available funds are noted below:

Fund	Fund Transaction Costs %
Passive Equity Fund	0.12
Diversified Return Fund	0.04
Money Market Fund	0.00
Emerging Markets Fund	0.18
Ethical Fund	0.16
Pre-Retirement Fund	0.00
Pre-Retirement Inflation Linked Fund	0.05
Property Fund	0.00
Shariah Fund	0.00

- Are estimates using assumed rates of future investment returns and inflation which may not be borne out in practice.
- May differ in the future to reflect changes in regulatory requirements or investment conditions.
- Will be affected by future, and as yet unknown, changes to the Scheme's investment options.
- Are not guaranteed.
- Depend upon how far members in the default lifestyle option are from retirement as the funds used change over time.
- May not prove to be a good indication of how a member's individual DC savings might grow; and
- Comply with the Technical Actuarial Standards (TAS) 100: Principles for Technical Actuarial Work.